Company registration number 05542880 (England and Wales)

o®0
o ®
SCIROCCO

ENERGY @ o
X

SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022






SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

CONTENTS

Chairman's statement incorporating the strategic report

Directors' report

Directors' responsibilities statement

Corporate governance statement

Independent auditor's report

Statement of comprehensive income

Statement of financial position

Statement of changes in equity

Statement of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements

Page

1-12

13-16

17

18 -32

33-38

39

40 - 41

42 - 43

44

45 -83




SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | hereby present the financial statements of Scirocco Energy plc (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2022.

2022 was a year of strategic progress for the Group as we worked towards completion of the divestment of legacy
assets, in particular Ruvuma, and continued the development of the Company’s sustainable energy investment
strategy. The macro backdrop continues to support the new strategy as the importance of delivering secure and
sustainable energy solutions for the UK and beyond becomes increasingly clear, while increased volatility in the oil
and gas markets, exacerbated by Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, has demonstrated the prudence of the Board and
shareholders’ decision to pivot to an investment strategy that offers a risk/reward profile better aligned to a company
of Scirocco’s scale and ability to deliver sustainable long-term returns.

With this in mind, in my capacity as Non-Executive Chairman of the Group, | am pleased to provide a review of the
2022 financial year along with an outlook for the current fiscal year and beyond.

Strategy and Portfolio

During 2022 the Group made significant strides towards divesting its legacy oil and gas assets in order to progress its
strategy to invest in sustainable and circular economy assets which meet our criteria for value creation, such as the
Company’s ongoing investment into Energy Acquisitions Group Limited (“EAG”) and support for its acquisition and
subsequent operation of Greenan Generation Limited (“GGL”), which EAG acquired in September 2021.

A significant amount of work was undertaken in the second half of 2022 to identify and high grade potential portfolio
opportunities to build on what has been achieved in GGL. In line with our strategy we continue to review opportunities
across all three target investment segments: energy, circular and vector.

Ruvuma Disposal

As initially announced to the market in the RNS dated 13 June 2022, the Group entered into a conditional binding
agreement with Wentworth Resources plc to divest its 25% non-operated interest in the Ruvuma asset, Tanzania.
Following this announcement, and in accordance with the terms of the Joint Operating Agreement ("JOA") associated
with Ruvuma, ARA Petroleum Tanzania Limited (“APT”) informed the Company that it would be exercising its pre-
emption rights in relation to the sale of the Company's interest in the asset for a total consideration of up to US$16
million comprised of:

+ Initial consideration of US$3 million payable on completion of the disposal, which is now expected to be in Q3
2023;

» US$3 million payable upon final investment decision being taken by the parties to the Ruvuma Asset Production
Sharing Agreement or the JOA as the case may be;

« Deferred consideration of up to US$8 million payable in the form of a 25% net revenue share from the point when
Ruvuma commences delivery of gas to the gas buyer;

» Contingent consideration of US$2 million payable on gross production reaching a level equal to or greater than
50Bcf.

In addition, APT would provide Scirocco with a loan of up to ceiling $6,250,000 to meet all cash calls pursuant to the
Ruvuma JOA arising between 1 January 2022 and the expected completion date — thereby removing the risk of default
and possible relinquishment of Scirocco’s interest in the project. During the period between signature of the sale
agreements and completion the loan accrues as cash calls are paid by APT on Scirocco's behalf. The consideration
payable at completion is also increased by the cash calls incurred. At completion the accrued loan will be offset against
the increased consideration balance, cancelling out the loan. In March 2023, Scirocco and APT agreed to increase the
contractional longstop date to 31 August 2023 from 30 June 2023.

The total potential consideration represents a significant premium to Scirocco's prevailing market capitalisation and
the deal strengthens Scirocco's balance sheet and, critically, removed the imminent need to raise capital to fund the
Ruvuma work programme during 2022 and into 2023 — which given the highly challenging market backdrop was a
genuine risk that the Board were committed to avoid at all costs.

Pursuant to Rule 15 of the AIM Rules for Companies, the Proposed Transaction was presented for shareholder
approval by way of an ordinary resolution at a General Meeting in June 2022, and the resolution received the requisite
support from shareholders to approve the transaction.
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In December 2022, the Tanzanian Fair Competition Commission ("FCC") granted its unconditional approval for the
transaction and issued the Company with the Merger Clearance Certificate - an important step towards completion of
the asset divestment. Following the end of the period we have seen significant progress on the asset in terms of an
accelerated timeline to first gas, which we see as a positive step towards receiving the contingent payments relating
to FID and the deferred consideration linked to a share of gas revenue.

As communicated to the market in an RNS dated 25 May 2023, the Company and APT have extended the long stop
date to 31 August 2023 and both parties expect to complete the transaction within this timeframe. Completion of this
divestment represents a material strategic event for the Company and enables the business to move forward with a
clear strategic vision, a significantly strengthened balance sheet and belief that the material upside associated with
contingent elements of that transaction will provide funds to accelerate Scirocco’s stated growth strategy

EAG/GGL

Following the acquisition of GGL in September 2021, EAG implemented a number of operational and technical
improvements to the site, using their extensive experience of operating and maintaining anaerobic digestion plants to
minimise downtime and maximise efficiency gains. As reported to the market in April 2023, in Q4'22 GGL supported
by wholesale power prices performed strongly, exceeding the key performance indicators of production, revenue and
EBITDA achieved in Q4'21 and clearly demonstrating the positive impact of EAG’s operatorship and the overall
approach to optimisation of these low-risk, cash-generative assets.

During the period, Scirocco supported EAG’s team in identifying and reviewing a number of potential investments with
similar profiles to GGL and good progress continues to be made in the screening and due diligence processes. That
being said, factors including the delayed completion of the Ruvuma divestment and the absence of authority to issue
new share capital have hindered more substantial progress on these opportunities . However, the Board remains
confident of completing the Ruvuma transaction before the newly extended long stop date of 31 August 2023 which
will deliver funds and potentially further contingent payments within the remainder of 2023 that will provide capital for
further investment.

In parallel, Scirocco will continue to support EAG as it investigates alternative sources of potential investment funds to
secure attractive acquisition opportunities currently under consideration. Longer-term, as the EAG JV continues to
forge a track record for consistent delivery and value uplift from its ownership and operatorship of Anaerobic Digestion
installations, we hope to broaden the appeal of our investment proposition.

Other Assets
Corallian Energy Limited

Under its previous investment policy, in 2018 Scirocco undertook a minor investment in Corallian Energy Limited
through the subscription for 83,333 shares at a price of £1.50 per share. In September 2022 Corallian’s parent
company, Reabold Resources plc, announced the conditional sale of Corallian at a price of up to £3.20 per share as
a combination of initial cash plus contingent payments, providing a profitable exit from a legacy investment for Scirocco.
The proceeds further strengthened the Company’s balance sheet and supported ongoing opportunity screening being
undertaken by the Joint Venture with EAG.

Helium One

During 1H 2022 Scirocco sold 1,550,000 shares of Helium One at an average price of 6.7p/share.

Scirocco held its shares in an account with Pello Capital which entered administration in October 2022. As a result
Scirocco’s Helum One shareholding was split into two tranches.

* 1,906,088 shares held in a brokerage account

* 1,000,000 shares held within the general Pello Capital Crest account which had not been credited to the Scirocco
named account.
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Scirocco has been engaged with the administrator, Evelyn Partners, regarding the recovery of the 1 million shares. At
31 December 2022 Scirocco held 2,906,088 shares in Helium, 1 million of which are the subject of ongoing recovery
discussions with the Pello Capital administrator.

| am pleased to see the monetisation of the Helium One investment continue.
Governance/Shareholder Engagement

As we report on the first full year of implementing Scirocco’s reshaped investment strategy, and despite the
overwhelming mandate delivered by shareholders in support of this strategy in 2021, the Board recognises that there
remained some shareholder objections to the pivot to investing in sustainable energy and the circular economy which
drove the strategic divestment of the legacy investment in Ruvuma.

As a result, the Directors and | took part in several live sessions, both virtual and in person, with shareholders
throughout 2022 in order to better understand shareholder concerns. This culminated in an investor event in December
2022 around the Group’s investment into EAG and its forward strategy which was positively received by all attendees.

At the same time, the Board acknowledges the results of the shareholder vote at the AGM in August 2022, especially
on Resolution 6 — Disapplication of Pre-emption Rights. As stated at the time and above, we believe this has impacted
the Group’s ability to execute swiftly on opportunities that meet our criteria for value creation to the detriment of all
stakeholders. In the constructive spirit of shareholder engagement activity in 2022, where appropriate the Board will
continue its efforts to engage on this topic with all shareholders to alleviate concerns, outline the long-term growth
strategy and emphasise how the decisions undertaken by the Board support delivery of that strategy.

A final point on Governance, is the evolution of the Board composition to reflect the change in strategic direction of
Scirocco. The Board recognises that it is of the utmost importance that it retains the appropriate level of skills,
experience and independence in order to be able to execute its strategy on behalf of its shareholders. In that regard,
post-period, there have been a number of changes with Muir Miller stepping down, and Don Nicolson notifying of his
intention to step down in due course. I'd like to thank both Muir and Don for their good insights and guidance through
what has been a highly transitional and challenging period for the Company.

Scirocco has been fortunate to replace these Directors with two candidates put forward as representatives of our
largest shareholder G.P. Jersey in the form of Matt Bower and Niall Roberts who join as Non-Executive Directors. Both
Matt and Niall bring directly applicable skills and experience within the broader renewables/clean-tech space which
will be invaluable to Scirocco moving forward. Reflecting our commitment to good Governance, we are in the process
of recruiting a suitable independent non-executive director with the requisite skills to assume the role as Chairman of
the Audit Committee which will come available through the departure of Don Nicolson.

Outlook

While progress is being made across our strategic priorities, it is important to acknowledge the delay to the initially
anticipated timeline for completion of the Ruvuma divestment and its impact on our strategic progress. While this is
not uncommon in transactions of this nature in Tanzania, we understand and share shareholder frustration and
acknowledge there has been a knock-on impact on the Company’s ability to deploy capital for further investments in
the sustainable energy sector as rapidly as we would have liked.

As outlined above, the Company expects to complete the transfer of ownership of its 25% interest in Ruvuma to APT
by the longstop date of 31 August 2023, which will deliver net funds immediately upon completion and potentially
further funds through contingent payments during 2023 which will provide capital for further investment within the
sustainable energy and circular economy sectors.

Recognising that growth will require funding, the Board continues to investigate sources of parallel investment which
would reduce the call on Scirocco’s balance sheet in the short term by bringing in third party capital alongside Scirocco
balance sheet cash as we seek to build a self-sustaining business of scale.
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Closing Remarks

The Group began 2022 with a mandate to pursue its strategy of investing in sustainable energy and the circular
economy while removing the overhang of legacy investments in hydrocarbon production.

Having secured an agreement to divest Ruvuma to APT and realised significant upside in the Company’s investment
in Corallian Energy, we have established a clear path to strengthen Scirocco’s balance sheet and, upon completion of
the Ruvuma divestment, will have the ability to fund follow on investments in the anaerobic digestion space through
the joint venture with EAG, as we seek to replicate the success of Greenan over the past year and build a business of
scale for the benefit of all stakeholders.

The Company will continue to support EAG in its operatorship of Greenan and its business development efforts, as it
identifies, screens and pursues potential acquisition targets and other growth opportunities. EAG has a high quality
team with a unique network and pipeline of opportunities. I'd like to thank the EAG team for their patience while
Scirocco fully completes its strategic re-positioning and are pleased to be aligned with them as we jointly pursue value
accretive opportunities that deliver a multitude of stakeholder benefits in terms of UK’s pathway to net-zero.

I'd like to commend Tom Reynolds for his diligent work across the various work-streams associated with Ruvuma
divestment, the development of the investment strategy and the progression of the EAG Joint Venture.

Finally, I'd like to thank our shareholders, new and old, for their patience. There is no doubt that long-term shareholders
in the Company have had a tough ride and we fully recognise that, despite our best efforts, things did not work out the
way that they had hoped when they invested in the Company on the basis of Tanzania. That said, it is for exactly that
reason that the Board has changed the Company’s investment strategy to reflect changing market demand and
broader macro drivers, and we see strong opportunities ahead to build a business of scale and relevance that is
capable of delivering long-term growth and sustainable shareholder value.

Section 172 (1) Statement

The Group was admitted to the AIM Market of the London Stock Exchange on 12 April 2007 and has been a public
company from this date. The Group is required to provide a Section 172(1) statement under the terms of its AIM listing.
This disclosure aims to describe how the Directors have acted to promote the success of the company for the benefit
of its members as a whole, taking into account (amongst other matters) the matters set out in section 172(1)(a) to (f)
of the Companies Act which are set out below.

(a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long term

As discussed above, the decision to propose and adopt the new investment policy — approved and adopted by
shareholder vote at the AGM in July 2021 — the decision to sell the Ruvuma asset and the investment made in EAG
(which supported EAG to acquire GGL) have been taken with the long term future of the company in mind. In taking
these decisions the Board has taken account of the relative risk involved in each of the relevant investments and
chosen a sustainable course of action which allows the company to be developed in a more predictable manner by
targeting investment assets with significantly lower levels of uncertainty and which deliver cash flow in the short term
which is then available to be reinvested. The Group has not made any other decisions which will likely affect the
company in the long term in the current financial year.

(b) the interests of the company's employees

Aside from the Directors, the Group has one employee and the decisions to promote the success of the company for
the benefit of its members as a whole as described above are entirely consistent with the interests of the company’s
employee.

(c) the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

Aside from a small number of service providers, the success of the Group’s investment strategy will be driven in part
by the business relationships that exist between the Directors and the management of the Group’s investee companies
and as such the maintenance of such relationships is given a very high priority by the Directors.
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(d) the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment

During the current investment phase the Group has no operations. The Directors are nevertheless cognisant of the
potential impact of future investments on affected communities and the environment and such factors will continue to
be considered as part of investment appraisal and decision making.

(e) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

The Group's standing and reputation with other energy companies, equity investors, providers of debt, advisers and
the relevant authorities are key in the Company achieving its investment objectives and the Group’s ethics and
behaviour, as summarised in the Group’s Business Principle and Ethics, will continue to be central to the conduct of
the Directors. The Group is advised by blue-chip experienced advisers which also assist in maintaining high standards
of conduct.

(f) the need to act fairly as between members of the company
The Directors will continue to act fairly between the members of the Group as required under the Companies Act, the
AIM Rules and QCA corporate governance principles.

ALASTAIR FERGUSON

Alastair Ferguson
Non-Executive Chairman
Date: 29 June 2023
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Strategic Report
Energy Acquisitions Group Limited

Scirocco Energy announced its first investment into Energy Acquisitions Group Ltd ("EAG"), a specialist acquisition
and operating vehicle in the Anaerobic Digestion ("AD")/Biogas sector, to acquire a 50% interestin EAG for £1.2 million.

The initial investment was used by EAG to acquire 100% of Greenan Generation Limited ("GGL") and associated 0.5
MWe Anaerobic Digestion plant located in County Londonderry, Northern Ireland. GGL is a cash generative,
operational AD plant.

Anaerobic digestion is a process that creates biogas, a renewable energy source that will help the UK deliver on its
decarbonisation commitments.

The investment positives supporting the investment in the EAG platform are as follows:

* Low carbon sustainable energy. The carbon intensity of sources of energy is under critical review. As a result of
the ability to generate natural gas from agricultural waste, the carbon footprint of the biogas is therefore lower.

+ Index linked revenue streams. The assets targeted by EAG benefit from government subsidised revenue streams
which are escalated on an annual basis in line with inflation. For example, at GGL, the NIROC credits representing
c. 60% of revenue are government backed and index linked.

During 2022 the EAG team optimised the performance of GGL through a series of upgrades funded from cashflow and
identified a number of additional acquisition opportunities. In addition the team has identified a number of routes to
add value to acquisition targets through follow-on investment.

Capital generated from EAG and GGL operations is expected to remain at the EAG level to support ongoing operations
and to assist financing future developments. At this time there are no dividends expected or planned, and the Scirocco
group will continue to remain operationally self-sufficient through it's own commercial activities as well as support the
EAG group with future developments.

Financial performance

For calendar year 2022 the revenue generated for the period the EAG group totalled £1,414k (unaudited) supported
by high power prices through the period. This compares to the same period in 2021 where revenue was £1,163k
(unaudited) - a 22% year on year increase. EBITDA for calendar year 2022 was £619k (2021: £352k).

Operational

During the calendar year the EAG team carried out a programme of upgrades to ensure biological, mechanical, and
financial stability of the plant going forward.

» all mixers in the premix tank

« all primary digester mixers, and refurbishment of all mixer infrastructure including winches, winch motors and guide
rails

*  Full Edina CHP (Combined Heat & Power) engine block change, and completing major service

* Upgrade and replacement of augers and pumps in feed and recirculation system including installation of automatic
recirculation system

* Following a review of options for feedstock optimisation the EAG team has introduced [chicken litter/additional
feedstock sources] to improve biomethane yield.

During the period the operational availability of the plant was in excess of 93%
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Business Development

During the period EAG continued to identify and assess a number of potential acquisitions. As outlined in a shareholder
briefing session held in December 2022, the Scirocco and EAG teams described a pipeline of potential acquisitions in
the UK which total c. £30 million in value.

In Q4 2022 EAG entered into an exclusivity agreement to acquire 100% of the share capital in a target SPV in South
West England which has been delivering consistent operational and financial results over the past 7 years, generating
an EBITDA of £567k for its last financial year. EAG's plans include optimising performance to increase EBITDA at the
plant to £725k in its first year of ownership.

The transaction process moved into Phase 2 which included drafting of the SPA and associated project documents.
The acquisition requires £3.8m of acquisition capital as well as approximately £200k in closing costs, and will be debt
funded to approximately 70% of the total. Scirocco announced on 25 May 2023 that the transaction could not proceed
at this time pending the completion of the Ruvuma sale process which was expected to deliver cash which could be
invested to support the acquisition in due course. In the meantime the EAG team continue to explore sources of
investment which can support growth in parallel with Scirocco investment.

Tanzania
Scirocco continues to hold two licence interests in natural gas in Tanzania.
A. Ruvuma PSA

ARA Petroleum Tanzania Limited ("APT") 50%*
Aminex plc ("AEX") 25%
Scirocco Energy plc 25%
* APT became operator in October 2020 following the completion of its farm-in to the AEX working interest

In 2022 Scirocco held a 25% working interest in the Ruvuma Petroleum Sharing Agreement ("Ruvuma PSA") in the
south-east of Tanzania covering an area of 3,447 square kilometres of which approximately 90% lies onshore and the
balance offshore. The Ruvuma PSA is in a region of southern Tanzania where very substantial gas discoveries have
been made offshore in recent years and where gas has also been discovered onshore and along the coastal islands
at Ntorya, Mnazi Bay, Kiliwani North and Songo-Songo.

On 13 June 2022 the Group announced that it has entered into a conditional binding agreement with Wentworth
Resources plc (AIM: WEN) to divest its 25% non-operated interest in the Ruvuma asset, Tanzania. Following this
announcement, and in accordance with the terms of the Joint Operating Agreement associated with Ruvuma, ARA
Petroleum Tanzania Limited (“APT”) informed the Company that it would be exercising its pre-emption rights in relation
to the sale of the Company's interest in the asset for a total consideration of up to US$16 million comprised of:

* Initial consideration of US$3 million payable on completion of the transaction;

» US$3 million payable upon final investment decision being taken by the parties to the Ruvuma Asset Production
Sharing Agreement or the JOA as the case may be;

« Deferred consideration of up to US$8 million payable in the form of a 25% net revenue share from the point when
Ruvuma commences delivery of gas to the gas buyer;

- Contingent consideration of US$2 million payable on gross production reaching a level equal to or greater than
50Bcf.

In addition APT will provide Scirocco with a loan of up to $6,250,000 to meet all cash calls pursuant to the Ruvuma
JOA arising between the Economic Date of 1 January 2022 and the expected completion timeline.

The first US$3 million to be drawn under the loan is interest free however any amounts drawn in excess of US$3 million
will incur interest at a rate of 7% per annum until such time as the grant of the security in respect of the loan is approved
by the Minister for Energy in Tanzania.
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Completion Process
In order to complete the transaction a number of approvals from Tanzanian government authorities are required.

In December 2022, the Tanzanian Fair Competition Commission ("FCC") granted its unconditional approval for the
transaction and issued the Company with the Merger Clearance Certificate - an important step towards completion of
the asset divestment.

The company has engaged with the Tanzanian Revenue Authority (“TRA”) in order to obtain a tax clearance certificate
— a key requirement to complete the transaction. The TRA have confirmed that it has completed its assessment and
provided Scirocco with a notice of conditional clearance setting out what was required to obtain a clearance.

This has allowed Scirocco to engage with the remaining authorities which are required to approve the transaction:
PURA, TPDC and the Minster for Energy.

As communicated to the market in an RNS dated 25 May 2023, the Company and APT extended the long stop date to
31 August 2023 and both parties expect to complete the transaction within this timeframe. Completion of this
divestment represents a material strategic event for the Company and enables the business to move forward with a
clear strategic vision, a significantly strengthened balance sheet and belief that the material upside associated with
contingent elements of that transaction will provide funds to accelerate Scirocco’s stated growth strategy.

Ruvuma Asset

Following the end of the period we have seen significant progress on the asset in terms of an accelerated timeline to
first gas, which we see as a positive step towards receiving the contingent payments relating to FID and the deferred
consideration linked to a share of gas revenue.

2022 Operational Update

The acquisition of a 338km2 3D seismic survey was completed in October 2022 undertaken by Africa Geophysical
Services Limited (“AGS”). The survey was designed to improve resolution and mapping in the Cretaceous reservoir
sands for future development drilling to more accurately assess the reserve potential of both the gas field and additional
prospective horizons. The seismic data is currently in full field processing with an early set of date having been
delivered to the operator to commence interpretation.

An addendum to the Ruvuma PSA (“PSA Addendum”) was negotiated detailing the fiscal terms for gas production to
be applied to any production from the PSA. The parties to the Ruvuma PSA including the Tanzania Petroleum
Development Corporation (“TPDC”) signed the PSA Addendum in Dar es Salaam on 25 November 2022.

In discussions with the Tanzanian authorities during the year, it became apparent that there was an urgent need for
the early supply of gas from Ntorya to mitigate shortages in supply for the generation of electricity in Dar es Salaam.
As aresult, the operator APT has restructured the project prioritising early production of gas targeted for Q4 2023. This
represents an acceleration of first gas by more than a year.

The revised work programme for 2023 now includes the following:

+  Two week testing progamme on NT-2, using a mobile testing unit to sample the gas and establish an accurate
measurement of the gas composition required for the design of in field processing facilities and the export pipeline
to the Madimba Gas Plant

* Conclusion of negotiations of a Gas Sales Agreement (“GSA”)

« Finalisation of terms for the construction of (1) export pipeline from the Madimba Gas Plant to accommodate gas
by October 2023 and (2) in field gas gathering and processing facilities

* Entering into a rig contract to drill test and complete the CH-1 well as a gas producer and to workover and
recomplete NT-1 as a gas producer.

A near final Field Development Plan (“FDP”) has been submitted which, upon approval, will lead to the issuance of a
Development Licence for the Ntorya area.
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Under the Ruvuma sale arrangements between Scirocco and APT, Scirocco’s funding obligations under the work
programme are expected to be met by APT pursuant to the signed agreement.

Scirocco believes that the proposed operational plan for 2023 has the potential to deliver.

Technical Overview

During 2018 the Joint Venture conducted technical work with the support of RPS Energy Consultants Limited, on the
resource estimates, and by 10 Consulting, on the development engineering and economics, leading to the upgraded
resource estimates included in Table 1. The independent studies now estimate gross 2C contingent resources of 763
bcf, of which 191 bcf are net to Scirocco’s working interest, equivalent to approximately 31.8 mmbbils oil equivalent.

Resource summary - Ntorya Field

Gross Licence Basis (bcf)

Licence 1C 2C 3C Gross Mean
unrestricted GIIP
Mtwara Development pending 26 81 213
Mtwara Development unclarified 324 682 950 1870
763

Resource summary excluding Ntorya Field

Prospective Resources (bcf)*
Gross on Licence

Prospect/Lead 1U 2U 3U Mean unrisked Pg %
Chikumbi Jurassic 399 936 1,798 1,351** gr**
* Assuming development licence is ratified

o P50

o RPS assessment of PG

B. Kiliwani North Development Licence ("KNDL")

Scirocco holds a 8.3918% working interest in the Kiliwani North Development Licence. This interest was finalised
following the exit of Bounty Oil and Gas NL from the Joint Venture. TPDC has a back-in right to take up an interest in
the KNDL which would reduce Scirocco’s interest to 7.975%. To date TPDC has not taken up that right.

2022 Operational Update

As a result of reservoir pressure decline and compartmentalisation, the Kiliwani North-1 well has not produced during
the period.

The well has produced approximately 6.4 bcf of gas to date from a compartment estimated to contain approximately
10 BCF. Estimated gas resources have been independently audited by RPS Energy, who show the Kiliwani North
structure to contain approximately 31 bcf (gross mean GIIP).

A resource report by LR Senergy, completed in May 2015, attributed approximately 28 bcf gross best estimate
contingent resource to the Kiliwani North field. These estimates were revisited by RPS in 2018 following production
over an 18-month period totalling approximately 6.4 bcf. This resulted in a new Pmean GIIP of 30.8 bcf and a remaining
gross 2P reserve of 1.94 bcf. It is felt that with further intervention additional gas can be recovered from the KN-1 well.
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The Joint Venture has identified the possibility of perforating a lower and potentially gas saturated section of the
reservoir. Operator conducted analysis indicates the possibility of providing up to 8 bcf of additional resource from
KN-1.

The joint venture considers that any future drilling activity on the Licence is contingent upon improved seismic
resolution of the target structures and the degree of fault compartmentalisation that could be determined with new
seismic.

The operator of the adjacent Songo Songo gas field to the west, PAET, will acquire an extensive field wide 3D seismic
survey with full fold coverage up to the block boundary requiring an incursion of 12.5km2 into KNDL at no cost to the
KNDL parties. This survey was expected to be undertaken in 2022 but was subsequently delayed into 2023 with the
survey now expected to be completed by mid-year. Although coverage will be limited in extent, the new seismic has
the potential to provide valuable data and improve structural mapping allowing the joint venture to determine potential
new drilling opportunities.

Helium One
During 1H 2022 Scirocco sold 1,550,000 shares of Helium One at an average price of 6.7p/share.

Scirocco held its shares in an account with Pello Capital which entered administration in October 2022. As a result
Scirocco’s Helium One shareholding was split into two tranches.

1,906,088 shares held in a brokerage account

* 1,000,000 shares held within the general Pello Capital Crest account which had not been credited to the Scirocco
named account.

Scirocco has been engaged with the administrator, Evelyn Partners, regarding the recovery of the 1 million shares. At
31 December 2022 Scirocco held 2,906,088 shares in Helium, 1 million of which are the subject of ongoing recovery
discussions with the Pello Capital administrator.

On 5 June 2023, 1,906,088 shares in Helium One were sold for an average price of 7.5p/share. As such, Scirocco's
remaining holding in Helium One is 1,000,000 shares.

TOM REYNOLDS

Mr Tom Reynolds
Director
Date: 29 June 2023

-10 -



SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Glossary and Notes

2D seismic
3D

AIM

API

barrel or bbl
bbls

bcf

seismic data collected using the two dimensional common depth point method
three-dimensional

London Stock Exchange Alternative Investment Market

American Petroleum Institute

45 US gallons

barrels of oil

billion cubic feet

best estimatethe most likely estimate of a parameter based on all available data, also often termed the P50 (or

or P50
billion
bopd
CNG
contingent
resources

CPR
discovery

electric logs

GlIP
GSA
HH-1
HHDL
KN-1
KNDL
m

mm
mmbbls
mmscf
mmscfd
OGA

the value of a probability distribution of outcomes ta the 50% confidence level)

10 to the power of 9

barrels of oil per day

condensed natural gas

those quantities of petroleum estimated, at a given date, to be potentially recoverable from known
accumulations, but the associated projects are not yet considered mature enough for commercial
development due to one or more contingencies

Competent Persons Report

a petroleum accumulation for which one or several exploratory wells have been established
through testing, sampling and/or logging the existence of a significant quantity of potentially
moveable hydrocarbons

tools used within the wellbore to measure the rock and fluid properties of the surrounding
formations

gas initially in place

gas sales agreement

Horse Hill-1 well

Horse Hill Developments Limited

Kiliwani North-1 well

Kiliwani North Development Licence

thousand (ten to the power 3)

million (ten to the power 6)

milion barrels of oil

million standard cubic feet of gas

millon standard cubic feet of gas per day

UK Oil and Gas Authority (formally the Department of Energy and Climate Change

oil in place orstock tank oil initially in place, those quantities of oil that are estimated to be known reservoirs prior

STOIIP
pay

PEDL
permeability
petrophysics

play
porosity
prospective
resources
proven
reserves

probable
reserves

to production commencing

reservoir in portion of a reservoir formation that contains economically producible hydrocarbons.
The overall interval in which pay sections occur is the gross pay; the portion of the gross pay that
meets specific criteria such as minimum porosity, perme

Petroleum Exploration and Development Licence

the capability of a porous rock or sediment to permit the flow of fluids through the pore space

the study of the physical and chemical properties of rock formations and their interactions with
fluids

a set of known or postulated oil or gas accumulations sharing similar geologic properties

the percentage of void space in a rock formation

those quantities of petroleum which are estimated, at a given date, to be potentially recovered
from undiscovered accumulations

those quantities of petroleum, which, by analysis of geoscience and engineering data, can be
estimated with reasonable certainty to be commercially recoverable (1P), from a given data
forward, from known reservoirs and under defined economic conditions,

those additional reserves which analysis of geoscience and engineering data indicate are less
likely to be recovered than Proven Reserves but more certain to be recovered than Possible
Reserves. It is equally likely that actual remaining quantities recover
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possible
reserves

PSA
PRMS
reserves

reservoir
SPE

tef
trillion

those additional reserves which analysis of geoscience and engineering data suggest are less
likely to be recoverable than Probable Reserves. The total quantities ultimately recovered from the
project have a low probability to exceed the sum of Proved reserves

petroleum sharing agreement

Petroleum Resources Management system

those quantities of petroleum anticipated to be commercially recovered by application of
development projects to known accumulations from a given date forward under defined conditions
a subsurface rock formation containing an individual natural accumulation of moveable petroleum
Society of Petroleum Engineers

trillion cubic feet

10 to the power of 12

unconvention widely accepted to mean those hydrocarbon reservoirs that are tight; that is have low permeability

al reservoir
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The Directors are pleased to present this year’s annual report together with the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

A statement on Corporate Governance is set out on pages 18 to 32.

Principal Activities

The principal activity, in line with the investing policy approved by shareholders in July 2021, is to acquire a diverse
portfolio of direct and indirect interests in attractive cash generative and development assets within the European
sustainable energy market. The Board is seeking to invest in assets which meet the following criteria:

. cash generative, with the potential to re-invest operational cash flow in further growth;
« situated within the broad energy space, a market which the Board knows well;
- primary targets within one of three asset classifications:
Energy. Assets which are involved in the direct production of low carbon energy
Circular. Assets which recover valuable components from waste streams
Vector. Assets involved with the transmission, storage and delivery of low carbon energy
. assets which can attract the necessary investment capital, taking appropriate account of growing investor
sentiment towards ESG and SRl indicators; and
- assets which deliver stable returns, with lower exposure to global commaodity prices.

The Group may invest by way of outright acquisition, including the intellectual property, of a relevant business,
partnerships or joint venture arrangements, or by the acquisition of assets. Such investments, for the most part, will
be focused on the Group acquiring part of a company or project (which in the case of an investment in a company
may be private or listed on a stock exchange, and which may be pre-revenue), and such investments may constitute
a minority stake in the company or project in question. The Group's investments may take the form of equity, joint
venture debt, convertible instruments, licence rights, or other financial instruments as the Directors deem appropriate.

Scirocco intends to be a long-term investor and the Directors will place no minimum or maximum limit on the length
of time that any investment may be held.

There is no limit on the number of projects into which the Group may invest, nor the proportion of the Group’s gross
assets that any investment may represent at any time.

Business Review and Future Developments
A detailed review of the Group’s business is set out in the Chairman’s statement incorporating the strategic report
(pages 1-12).

Details of expected future developments for the Group are set out in the Chairman’s statement incorporating the
strategic report (pages 1-12).

Results and Dividends
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation amounted to £4.815 million (2021: £3.691 million). The Directors do not
recommend payment of a dividend (2021: nil).

Key Performance Indicators

For EAG/GGL the business is operational and cash generative. EAG's business plan expects to make further
acquisitions and cash generated from efficient operations at GGL will be a critical source of funds for reinvestment.
As a result the directors are of the opinion that the main KPIs to understand the performance of EAG/GGL are
revenue, EBITDA and operational uptime of the GGL plant. Taken together these data points will provide Scirocco
with guidance on the stable performance of operations and financial performance of the asset. The Board will review
this position during 2023 and will look to introduce a KPI indicators when the Group is in the position to do so.
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Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as
follows:

Date of appointment Date of resignation
Executive Directors
Alastair Ferguson 6 August 2018 -
Thomas Reynolds 4 December 2018 -

Non-Executive Directors
Donald Nicolson 11 November 2019 -
Muir Miller 18 February 2021 31 May 2023

Directors' Remuneration

The Company remunerates the Directors at a level commensurate with the size of the Company and the experience
of its Directors. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the Directors’ remuneration and believes it upholds the
objectives of the Company with regard to these issues. Details of the Director emoluments and payments made for
professional services rendered are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Directors' Interests
The Directors’ interests in the share capital of the Company at 31 December 2022 were:

At 31 December 2022 At 31 December 2021
Director Shares Options Shares Options
Jonathan Fitzpatrick 26,203,189 22,608,067 26,203,189 22,608,067
Alastair Ferguson 24,325,395 27,778,237 24,325,395 27,778,237
Tom Reynolds 2,464,108** 18,843,342 2,464,108** 18,843,342
Donald Nicolson - 25,614,183 - 15,332,053
Muir Miller *** - 20,935,723 - 4,484,314

* includes indirect interest of 916,624 shares held by Carolyn Fitzpatrick
** includes indirect interest of 286,738 shares held by Paula Reynolds
*** Mr Muir Miller joined the Board on 18 February 2021

No Director had, during the year or at the end of the year, other than disclosed above, a material interest in any
contract in relation to the Group’s activities except in respect of service agreements. Gneiss Energy, which is wholly
owned by Mr Fitzpatrick and his wife, maintains a service contract for the provision of operational and technical
management services, guidance and support on public relations and market engagement strategy, flexible work
space and meeting rooms, telephones, company secretary support and corporate finance advisory services with the
Company, the details of which are disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements.

Subject to the conditions set out in the Companies Act 2006, the Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
Officers’ insurance to indemnify the Directors against liability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties. Such
provisions remain in force at the date of this report.
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Substantial Shareholdings
At 29 June 2023 the following had notified the Company of disclosable interests in 3% or more of the nominal value
of the Company’s shares:

Shareholder Number of shares % of Issued Capital
Hargreaves Lansdown (Nominees) Limited 192,167,445 21.34%
Interactive Investor Services Nominees Limited 161,185,030 17.90%
HSDL Nominees Limited 94,050,020 10.44%
Forest Nominees Limited 79,394,128 8.82%
Barclays Direct Investing Nominees Limited 44,289,000 4.92%
Vidacos Nominees Limited 39,247,804 4.36%
Davycrest Nominees 32,756,058 3.64%

Environmental Responsibility

The Group is aware of the potential impact that its investee companies may have on the environment. The Group
ensures that it, and its investee companies at a minimum comply with the local regulatory requirements and the
revised Equator Principles with regard to the environment.

Supplier Payment Policy

The Group’s policy is to agree terms and conditions with suppliers in advance; payment is then made in accordance
with the agreement provided the supplier has met the terms and conditions. Suppliers are typically paid within 30
days of issue of invoice.

Employment Policies

The Group will be committed to promoting policies which ensure that high calibre employees are attracted, retained
and motivated, to ensure the ongoing success for the business. Employees and those who seek to work within the
Group are treated equally regardless of sex, marital status, creed, colour, race or ethnic origin.

Political Contributions and Charitable Donations
During the period the Group did not make any political contributions or charitable donations.

Financial Instruments
See Note 21 to the financial statements.

Related Party Transactions
See Note 22 to the financial statements.

Post Reporting Date Events

At the date these financial statements were approved, being 29 June 2023, the Directors were not aware of any
significant post balance sheet events other than those set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Annual General Meeting ("AGM")

This report and financial statements will be presented to shareholders for their approval at the AGM. The Notice of
the AGM will be distributed to shareholders together with the Annual Report.

Health and Safety

The Group’s aim will always be to achieve and maintain the highest standard of workplace safety. In order to achieve
this objective the Group sets demanding standards for workplace safety and will provide comprehensive training and
support to employees.
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Auditor

PKEF Littlejohn LLP were reappointed as auditors of the Group and in accordance with Section 285 of the Companies
Act 2006, a resolution preposing they be reappointed will be proposed at the next Annual General Meeting.

Going Concern

The Directors note the losses that the Group has made for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Directors have
prepared cash flow forecasts for the period ending 30 June 2024 which take account of the current cost and
operational structure of the Group. The base case forecast takes account of the sale of Ruvuma to ARA Petroleum
Tanzania Limited ("APT") and the loan structure provided within that structure to cover cash calls arising from the
asset. With the Ruvuma cash calls covered following the approval of shareholders at the general meeting on 29"
June 2022, the remaining cost structure of the Group comprises a proportion of discretionary spend and therefore in
the event that cash flows become constrained, costs can be reduced to enable the Group to operate within its
available funding. These forecasts demonstrate that the Group has sufficient cash funds available, on the assumption
that further funds can be sourced as and when needed, to allow it to continue in business for a period of at least
twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Comments on going concern
are included in the Operations report and note 1. Although the Ruvuma asset has been sold, no guarantee can be
made that the sale completes within 12 months of the approval of the financial statements. The critical assumption
in the going concern determination is that the Ruvuma PSA and the costs associated with the development of the
Ntoyra natural gas discovery are met by the Group drawing against the loan provided by APT for its 25% interest.
Based on this, there is material uncertainty present, given that draws on the facility would become due in the event
the sale does not complete. In the event the sale did not complete, it is assumed that - if required - the Group would
be able to access additional funding. If additional funding was not available there is a risk that commitments could
not be fulfilled, and assets would be relinquished.

Statement of Disclosure to the Auditor
In the case of each person who was a Director at the time this report was approved:
« So far as that Director was aware there was no relevant available information of which the Group’s auditor
was unaware; and
. That Director had taken all necessary steps to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information,
and to establish that the Group’s auditors were aware of that information.

Electronic Communication

The maintenance and integrity of the Group’s website is the responsibility of the Directors: the work carried out by
the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility
for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.

The Group's website is maintained in accordance with AIM Rule 26.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of the financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

On behalf of the board
TOM REYNOLDS

Mr Tom Reynolds
Director
Date: 29 June 2023
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations. Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the Directors are required to prepare the Financial Statements in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss
of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:
« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
« make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether the UK adopted international accounting standards have been followed subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
. prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of the
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Company is compliant with AIM Rule 26 regarding the Company’s website.
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As Chairman of Scirocco Energy plc, it is my responsibility to ensure that the Board is performing its role effectively
and has the capacity and ability, structure and support to enable it to continue to do so.

How we govern the Company

Information on how the Company organises its Corporate Governance is set out below and can also be found on the
Company’s website www.sciroccoenergy.com and is, in the opinion of the Board, fully in accordance with the revised
requirements of AIM Rule 26.

From September 2018 onwards, all AIM quoted companies were required to set out details of the recognised corporate
governance code that the Board of Directors has decided to adopt and provide reasons for any departures where it
does not comply with the code. The Company has elected to adopt the 2018 Quoted Companies Alliance Corporate
Governance Code for Small and Mid-Sized Companies (the “QCA Code”).

The Company intends to adhere to the recommendations of the QCA Code to the extent it considers them appropriate
in light of the Company’s size, liquidity and capital resources.

The QCA code is constructed around 10 broad principles and a set of disclosures. The QCA has stated what it
considers to be appropriate arrangements for growing companies and asks companies to provide an explanation of
how they are meeting the principles through the prescribed disclosures. We have considered how we apply each
principle to the extent that the Board judges these to be appropriate in the circumstances, and below we provide an
explanation of the approach take in relation to each.

2022 has seen, amongst others, the following governance developments:

« The Chairman, CEO and directors met with major shareholders and hosted a number of briefings with
investors;

« The transition energy investment policy approved by shareholders in 2021 has been rigorously applied in the
identification and screening of investment opportunities;

« A number of general meetings were called during 2022 in support of the proposed disposal of the Company's
interest in Ruvuma and wider questions raised by shareholders.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the overall governance of the Company. Its responsibilities include setting the strategic
direction of the Company, providing leadership to put the strategy into action and to supervise the management of the
business.

During 2022, Scirocco Energy operated with a four-member Board.

The Board currently comprises four non-executive Directors (‘NEDs’) and the CEO. Biographies of the Directors are
on pages 22-23. Due to their shareholding in the Company, three of the NEDs are not considered by the Board to be
independent. The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman, CEO, Non-Executive Directors and Company Secretary
are set out on the website and summarised below.

The Board has established the corporate governance values of the Company and has overall responsibility for setting
the Company’s strategic aims, defining the business plan and strategy and managing the financial and operational
resources of the Company. Overall supervision, acquisition, divestment and other strategic decisions are considered
and determined by the Board. The Executive team is supported by the wider team and external service providers as
required. The Directors are of the opinion that the Board comprises a suitable balance and that the recommendations
of the QCA Code have been implemented to an appropriate level. The Board, through the Chairman in particular,
maintains regular contact with its advisers and public relations consultants in order to ensure that the Board develops
an understanding of the views of major shareholders about the Company.
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Terms of Reference
The Terms of Reference of all Board Committees are available on the website.

Record of meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. For the period ending 31 December 2022 the Board met 9 times
(2021: 6, 2020: 17, 2019: 14, 2018: 10, 2017: 4) in relation to normal operational matters and on an ad hoc basis as
required to transact additional business to support the Company’s activities.

The Board is responsible for formulating, reviewing and approving the Company’s strategy, financial activities and
operating performance. Day-to-day management is devolved to the Executive Director and management who are
charged with consulting the Board on all significant financial and operational matters. All Directors have access to the
advice of the Company’s solicitors and the Company Secretary necessary information is supplied to the Directors on
a timely basis to enable them to discharge their duties effectively and all Directors have access to independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, as and when required.

Internal controls

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Company’s systems of internal controls and for reviewing their
effectiveness. These internal controls are designed to safeguard the assets of the Company and to ensure the
reliability of financial information for both internal use and external publication. Whilst they are aware that no system
can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, in light of increased activity and further
development of the Company, continuing reviews of internal controls will be undertaken to ensure that they are
adequate and effective.

Compliance

The Company has also reviewed the appropriate policies and procedures to ensure compliance with the UK Bribery
Act. The Company continues actively to promote good practice throughout the Company and has initiated a rolling
programme of anti-bribery and corruption training for all relevant employees and consultants.

QCA Principles
Review of each of the QCA Principles:

Principle 1:

Establish a strategy and business Scirocco Energy plc is an investment company whose strategy is to acquire
model which promote long-term a diverse portfolio of direct and indirect interests in attractive cash
value for shareholders generative and development assets within the European sustainable

energy market. In 2020, the Board announced its plan to review and
augment its strategy to invest in a broader European energy market strategy
targeting attractive growth opportunities predominantly within the European
gas and energy transition market whilst maximising value for shareholders
from the Company’s existing portfolio. This has been further developed as
announced on 18 February 2021 and the Board is seeking opportunities
which meet the following criteria:

« cash generative, with the potential to re-invest operational cash flow in
further growth;

+ situated within the broad energy space, a market which the Board
knows well;

* primary targets within one of three asset classifications:

- Energy - assets which are involved in the direct production of low
carbon energy.

- Circular - Assets which recover valuable components from waste
streams.

- Vector - Assets involved with the transmission, storage and delivery of
low carbon energy.

+ assets which can attract the necessary investment capital, taking
appropriate account of growing investor sentiment towards ESG and
SRl indicators; and

+ assets which deliver stable returns, with lower exposure to global
commodity prices.
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Principle 2:
Seek to understand and meet
shareholder needs and expectations

Principle 3:

Take into account wider stakeholder
and social responsibilities and their
implications for long-term success

Principle 4:

Embed effective risk management,
considering both opportunities and
threats, throughout the organization.

The Board is committed to maintaining good communication and having
constructive dialogue with all its shareholders. The Company has close
ongoing relationships with its private shareholders. Institutional
shareholders and analysts have the opportunity to discuss issues and
provide feedback at meetings with the Company. In addition, all
shareholders are encouraged to attend, where possible, the Company's
Annual General Meeting. Investors also have access to current information
on the Company though its website, www.sciroccoenergy.com, and via Tom
Reynolds (CEO) and Doug Rycroft (COO), who are available to answer
investor relations enquiries. The Company in conjunction with its investor
relations advisor has developed a Communications Strategy to formalise
how shareholder communications are managed.

The Board recognises that the long-term success of the Company is reliant
upon its ability and willingness to engage with the broader range of
stakeholders to positively influence the development of the Company and
the communities we interact with operationally and corporately. The Board
has put in place a range of processes and systems to ensure that there is
close oversight and contact with its key resources and relationships.

Given that Scirocco Energy plc is a small company there is close interaction
between the Board and Executive Management to help ensure successful
two-way communication with agreement on goals, targets and aspirations
for the Company. Scirocco Energy plc through its advisers and JV partners
has developed close ongoing relationships with a broad range of its
stakeholders and provides them with the opportunity to raise issues and
provide feedback to the Company.

It is critical that Scirocco Energy plc has a robust view of its risk profile and
appetite so as to ensure both its existing and new investments are managed
within acceptable margins of risk. The processes are in place to understand
the Company’s key drivers for success and to be able to assess the
associated risks in delivering on its strategy successfully.

Given the specialised nature of investing in, and being involved in, the
operations of specialised assets in the energy sector, it is imperative that
the Board considers at all times that it has the appropriate risk management
system including both people and processes to successfully mitigate these
risks.

The Board encourages a dynamic and constructive dialogue between
Executive Management, its advisers and the Board including the willingness
to challenge assumptions and the consideration of emerging and
interrelated risks for its investment portfolio.

In addition to its other roles and responsibilities, the Audit Committee is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that procedures are in place and are
being implemented effectively to identify, evaluate and manage the
significant risks faced by the Company. The risk assessment matrix below
sets out those risks, and identifies the controls that are currently in place.
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Principle 5:

Maintain the Board as a well-
functioning, balanced team led by a
chair

This matrix is updated as changes arise in the nature of risks or the controls
that are implemented to mitigate them. The Audit Committee reviews the
risk matrix and the effectiveness of scenario testing on a regular basis. The
Board has a comprehensive review of the risks every six months and works
with Executive Management to understand and agree on the types and
format of risk information that the Board requires. In addition the Board
periodically assesses the risk oversight processes and ensure suitability
with/and alongside its current policies.

See risk management section which begins on page 27.

The Board is currently comprised of five Directors; Alastair Ferguson, Non-
Executive Chairman; Donald Nicolson, Independent Non-Executive
Director, Niall Roberts, Non-Executive Director, Matt Bower, Non-Executive
Director and Tom Reynolds, CEO. Biographical details of the current
Directors are set out within Principle Six below.

Executive and Non-Executive Directors are subject to re-election at
intervals of no more than three years. The letters of appointment of all
Directors are available for inspection at the Company's registered office
during normal business hours. The Executive Director is considered to be a
full-time employee whilst the Non-Executive Directors are considered to be
part time but are expected to provide as much time to the Company as is
required. The Board elects a Chairman to chair every meeting.

The Board notes that the QCA recommends that the Chairman’s
responsibilities should be devolved from the day-to-day running of the
business in order to ensure independence.

The Board meets at least four times per calendar year. It has established
an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee and an AIM Rules
Compliance and Disclosures Committee, which are set out in more detail
below. At this stage, the Board does not consider it necessary to establish
a separate Nominations Committee. It shall continue to monitor the need to
match resources to its operational performance and costs and the matter
will be kept under review going forward.

Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings

The Company reports annually on the number of Board and Committee
meetings held during the year and the attendance record of individual
Directors.

To date in the current financial year the Directors have a good record of
attendance at such meetings. In order to be efficient, the Directors meet
formally and informally both in person and by telephone. To date there have
been at least quarterly meetings of the Board, and the volume and
frequency of such meetings is expected to continue at this rate.
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Principle 6:
Ensure that between them the
Directors have the necessary up-to-
date  experience, skills and
capabilities

The Board currently consists of five Directors. The Company believes that
the current balance of skills and experience in the Board as a whole, reflects
a very broad range of commercial and professional skills across
geographies and industries and the majority of the Directors have
experience in public markets.

The Board recognises that it currently has a limited diversity and this will
form a part of any future recruitment consideration if the Board concludes
that replacement or additional directors are required.

The Board shall review annually the appropriateness and opportunity for
continuing professional development whether formal or informal.

Alastair Ferguson (Non-Executive Chairman)

Mr Ferguson is a Chartered Engineer and has over 40 years’ experience in
the oil and gas industry, the last seven of which have been spent in various
Chairman and non-executive director positions. Mr Ferguson has
considerable commercial management experience and has specific
expertise in business development and managing projects in complex
political environments.

Donald Nicolson (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr Nicolson is a senior business leader with more than 35 years experience
in oil, gas, mining and natural stone sectors. During this time, he has held
multiple board roles, executive & non-executive, in both publicly-listed and
private companies. Between 2016 and 2019, Mr Nicolson held the role of
Chairman and interim CEO for mining and quarrying firm Levantina Natural
Stone Co., having previously held Vice Chairman, non-Executive Director
and Advisor roles. Mr Nicolson spent more than 26 years with BP
Exploration, during which he held roles including Director of BP North Sea,
Chief of Staff to BP CEO (E&P), Vice President for BP Alaska and Vice
President for BP Canada. Mr Nicolson is skilled in strategy development,
asset management, business planning, investment decision making, and
business restructuring and has significant fund-raising experience,
including main market IPO and debt refinancing.

Muir Miller (Non-Executive Director - Resigned)

Mr Miller is a Chartered Engineer and Member of the Institution of
Mechanical Engineers with over two decades of senior executive
experience, with particular focus on the renewable energy sector. Most
recently, Mr Miller was Managing Director of Peel Energy, part of the
privately owned, diverse and entrepreneurial Peel Group, a leading
infrastructure, transport and real estate investor in the UK, with collective
investments owned and under management of more than £5 billion. Prior to
joining Peel Energy, he was Business Development Manager at Energy
Power Resources, with an installed capacity of 113MW of dedicated
biomass assets, 70MW of landfill gas assets, and 100MW of wind assets in
France, UK and Sweden. Between 2005 and 2007, Mr Miller was CEO of
Novera Macquarie Renewable Energy, a joint venture with annual turnover
of £32 million and one of the largest independent renewable energy
operators in the UK with a total installed generating capacity of 117.5MW
across 53 geographically diverse sites.
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Principle 7:

Evaluate Board performance based
on clear and relevant objectives,
seeking continuous improvement.

Niall Roberts (Non-Executive Director)

. Experienced in developing environmental technologies,
manufacturing & shipping

. CEO & Director of successful private SME's

. Strong technical knowhow and commercial realisation through

driven solutions

Mr. Roberts has over ten years of experience working with international
fertiliser companies developing new production techniques, improving
chemical compositions and identifying new markets. Niall remains CEO of
Fluechem Ltd, which specialises in reducing SOx & NOx emissions within
the marine industry, helping ship owners meet their IMO objectives globally.
Overseeing the companies supply chain from originating raw material
producers, manufacturing bespoke reagents locally for vessel owners - to
offering technical advice whilst constantly evolving with the fast paced
industry and regulations.

Outside of the manufacturing sector Niall has a solid background in the
maritime world, assisting Streamline Shipping and Prasinus Holdings Ltd.
with moving hundreds of thousands of metric tons of raw material around
the world annually, opening up new markets for all stakeholders involved.
And in doing so reducing risks associated with currency fluctuations, energy
costs, variating commodity prices and changing legislation. Mr. Roberts
studied Maritime Business & Law ascertaining a BSc and furthered his
education at York University in International Law LLP gaining a Diploma.

Matt Bower (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Bower is an experienced executive director and Company Secretary of
AIM, CSX and TSX listed and private equity backed companies. Extensive
financial and commercial experience, including funding and structuring hi-
growth companies. Strategic board advisor and mentor to multiple
successful start-up technology and innovation companies. Mr. Bower has
more than 40 years’ experience in the Marine and Energy sector in senior
management and leadership roles with an expertise in restructuring
companies, strategic planning and business optimisation of SME’s focusing
on sustainable processes and technologies. Since 2017 he has fulfilled a
key leadership role during the restructuring of a listed company and led the
business in an executive capacity and Company Secretary during a highly
challenging market environment through to a fully funded going concern and
subsequent company sale maximising shareholder value. More recently he
has focused on technology commercialisation and business optimisation at
a strategic and operational level having received The 2023 Green Solution
Provider Award for work on reducing NOx emissions.

Tom Reynolds (CEQO)

Mr Reynolds is a Chartered Engineer with over 25 years' experience in the
energy sector, including a range of technical and commercial roles with BP
plc, Total SA and British Nuclear Fuels plc. He has also held management
positions at private equity investment and advisory firms, including 3i plc,
and specialises in strategic planning, investment management and
crossborder M&A transaction execution in the oil, gas, energy and
infrastructure sectors.

Internal evaluation of the Board, the Committees and individual Directors is
to be undertaken on an annual basis in the form of peer appraisal and
discussions to determine their effectiveness and performance as well as
testing the Directors' continued independence. This will be undertaken in
conjunction with external advisers as appropriate.
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Principle 8:
Promote a corporate culture that is
based on ethical values and
behaviours

Principle 9:

Maintain governance structures and
processes that are fit for purpose and
support good decision making by the
Board

The results and recommendations that come out of the appraisals for the
directors shall identify the key corporate and financial targets that are
relevant to each Director and their personal targets in terms of career
development and training. Progress against previous targets shall also be
assessed where relevant.

The Board is aware that the tone and culture set by the Board will greatly
impact all aspects of the Company as a whole and the way that partners,
contractors and advisors behave. The corporate governance arrangements
that the Board has adopted are designed to ensure that the Company
delivers long term value to its shareholders and that shareholders have the
opportunity to express their views and expectations for the Company in a
manner that encourages open dialogue with the Board.

A large part of the Company's activities is centred upon what needs to be
an open and respectful dialogue with partners, clients and other
stakeholders. Therefore, the importance of sound ethical values and
behaviours is crucial to the ability of the Company to successfully achieve
its corporate objectives. The Board places great import on this aspect of
corporate life and seeks to ensure that this flows through all that the
Company does.

The directors consider that at present the Company has an open culture
facilitating comprehensive dialogue and feedback and enabling positive and
constructive challenge. The Company has adopted a code for Directors' and
employees' dealings in securities which is appropriate for a Company
whose securities are traded on AIM and is in accordance with the
requirements of the Market Abuse Regulation which came into effect in
2016.

Ultimate authority for all aspects of the Company's activities rests with the
Board, the respective responsibilities of the Chairman and Executive
Director arising as a consequence of delegation by the Board. The Board
has adopted appropriate delegations of authority which set out matters
which are reserved to the Board. The Chairman is responsible for the
effectiveness of the Board, while management of the Company's business
and primary contact with shareholders has been delegated by the Board to
the Executive Director.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is comprised of Donald Nicolson (Chairman) and
Alastair Ferguson. This committee has primary responsibility for monitoring
the quality of internal controls and ensuring that the financial performance
of the Company is properly measured and reported. It receives reports from
the Executive Management and auditors relating to the interim and annual
accounts and the accounting and internal control systems in use throughout
the Company. The Audit Committee shall meet not less than twice in each
financial year and it has unrestricted access to the Company's auditors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is comprised of Alastair Ferguson
(Chairman) and Donald Nicolson. The Remuneration Committee reviews
the performance of the executive directors and employees and makes
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to their remuneration and
terms of employment. The Remuneration Committee also considers and
approves the granting of share options pursuant to the share option plan
and the award of shares in lieu of bonuses.

AIM Rules Compliance and Disclosures Committee

The AIM Rules Compliance and Disclosure Committee is responsible for
ensuring the Company has at all times sufficient procedures, resources and
controls in place to enable compliance with the AIM Rules for Companies
and make accurate disclosures to meet its disclosure obligations under
MAR. The committee is comprised of Donald Nicolson (Chairman), and Tom
Reynolds.

ESG and Sustainability Committee

The ESG and Sustainability Committee is comprised of Alastair Ferguson
(Chairman) and Tom Reynolds. The Committee was established by
Scirocco Energy PLCs Board of Directors and has responsibility for shaping
and steering the group’s approach to sustainability and ESG in all its
investments. It develops and reviews the Company’s strategy and activities;
ensures that sustainability and ESG considerations and criteria are
incorporated into the Company’s investment processes and asset
management activities; and will develop and review the policies,
programmes, targets, and initiatives relating to ESG matters. The ESG and
Sustainability Committee shall meet at least twice each year and otherwise
as required.

Non-Executive Directors

The Board has adopted guidelines for the appointment of Non-Executive
Directors which have been in place and which have been observed
throughout the year. These provide for the orderly and constructive
succession and rotation of the Chairman and non-executive directors
insofar as both the Chairman and non-executive directors will be appointed
for an initial term of five years and may, at the Board's discretion believing
it to be in the best interests of the Company, be appointed for subsequent
terms.

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Board complies with: a
duty to act within their powers; to promote the success of the Company; to
exercise independent judgement; to exercise reasonable care, skill and
diligence; to avoid conflicts of interest; not to accept benefits from third
parties and to declare any interest in a proposed transaction or
arrangement.

External Representation

The Company has in the past invested in projects and jurisdictions where it
believes it has a competitive advantage in providing early stage capital
alongside specialist knowledge to realise potential value. In order to ensure
the Company has full visibility and appropriate controls over the projects it
has invested in the Company has representative participation in the various
operating committees and / or Boards. The detail of which is outlined in the
table below;
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Principle 10:
Communicate how the company is
governed and is performing by
maintaining a dialogue  with
shareholders and other relevant
stakeholders

Asset

Ruvuma PSC — Operating Committee

Kiliwani North Development Licence — Operating Committee
EAG - Board representation

The Board is committed to maintaining good communication and having
constructive dialogue with all of its shareholders. The Company has close
ongoing relationships with its private shareholders. Institutional
shareholders and analysts have the opportunity to discuss issues and
provide feedback at meetings with the Company. In addition, all
shareholders are encouraged, where possible, to attend the Company's
Annual General Meeting. As part of the Communications Strategy the Board
has engaged investor relations advisers to guide the Company on best
practice methods of communicating through digital, print and verbal
mediums.

Investors also have access to current information on the Company through
its website and via the Executive Management Team comprising of Tom
Reynolds (CEO) and Doug Rycroft (COO), who are available to answer
investor relations enquiries. The Company proposed in 2021, subject to the
necessary formalities, to move to electronic communications with
shareholders.

The Company shall include, when relevant, in its annual report, any matters
of note arising from the three Board committees.
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Risk Management
Scirocco’s activities are subject to a range of financial risks including commodity prices, liquidity, exchange rates and
loss of operational equipment or wells.

These risks are managed with the oversight of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee through ongoing review,
considering the operational business and economic circumstance at that time. The primary risk facing the business is
that of liquidity.

Activity Risk Impact Control(s)
Financial Liquidity, market and credit Inability to continue as a going Robust capital and cost management
risk concern policies and procedures

Reduction in asset values

Inappropriate controls and Incorrect reporting of assets ~ Appropriate authority and investment
accounting policies levels as agreed and delegated by the
Board

Adherence to Statement of
Accounting Policies as detailed in
financial statements

Audit Committee

Recoverability of trade Reduction in net assets Trade debtors relate to a government

debtors entity with which the Joint Venture has
a valid Gas Sales Agreement,
therefore the Board remains of the
opinion that the debt is fully
recoverable

Regulatory Breach of rules Censure or withdrawal of listing Strong compliance regime instilled at
adherence authorisation the management, advisory and Board
levels of the Company

Company established an AIM Rules
Compliance and Disclosure
Committee in 2020

Strategic Damage to reputation Inability to secure new capital Effective communication with
or investments shareholders coupled with consistent
messaging to potential investees

Robust compliance and adherence to
the Company's ARC Policy

Inadequate disaster Loss of key operational and Secure off-site storage of data
recovery procedures financial data
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Operational

Management

Investment

Tom Reynolds
Director

Significant operational
eventin JVs

Significant geopolitical
event in one of our
operating theatres

Recruitment and retention
of key staff and advisors

Discrete investments suffer
a change in circumstance
or other risks manifesting
during the period of
ownership

Damage/loss of equipment
and injury/death

Loss of operating ability
and/or major project delays

Reduction in operating
capability

Reduction in value of
investments

Review of operator emergency
response plans and appropriate
contingency plans

Stakeholders engagement plans to
ensure visibility in political operating
environment

Alignment of company's recruitment
and retention objectives to ensure a
motivated workforce and a safe
working environment

Balancing salary with longer term
incentive and retention plans aligning
participants directly to the shareholder
experience

Robust risk management process
during the selection and investment
process including where appropriate
third party technical, financial, legal
and commercial due diligence activity
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Audit Committee Report

Scirocco’s Audit Committee meets at least twice a year and is presently chaired by Donald Nicolson and Alastair
Ferguson is the other member of the Committee.

Mr Nicolson joined the Board on 11th November 2019 and assumed the role of Audit Committee Chairman.

During the course of 2021 and 2022 the Committee has reviewed:

The statements to be included in the Annual report concerning internal control, risk management and the
going concern statement;

The carrying values of the producing and intangible assets;

The procedures for detecting fraud;

The systems and controls for the prevention of bribery; and

The committee has overseen the relationship with the external auditor, including:

Approved their remuneration for audit and non-audit services;

Approved their terms of engagement and the scope of the audit;

Satisfied itself that there are no relationships between the auditor and the Company which could adversely
affect the auditor’s independence and objectivity;

Monitored the auditor's processes for maintaining independence, its compliance with relevant UK law,
regulation, other professional requirements and the Ethical Standard, including the guidance on the rotation
of audit partner and staff;

Assessed the qualifications, expertise and resources, and independence of the external auditor and the
effectiveness of the external audit process;

Evaluated the risks to the quality and effectiveness of the financial reporting process in the light of the external
auditor’s communications with the committee;

Met with the external auditor without management being present, to discuss the auditor’s remit and any issues
arising from the audit; and

Discussed with the external auditor the factors that could affect audit quality and reviewed and approved the
annual audit plan, ensuring it is consistent with the scope of the audit engagement, having regard to the
seniority, expertise and experience of the audit team.

The committee reviewed the findings of the audit with the external auditor, including:

A discussion of issues which arose during the audit, including any errors identified during the audit; and the
auditor’s explanation of how the risks to audit quality were addressed;

Key accounting and audit judgements;

The auditor’s view of their interactions with senior management;

A review of any representation letters requested by the external auditor before they were signed by
management;

A review of the management letter and management’s response to the auditor’s findings and
recommendations; and

A review of the effectiveness of the audit process, including an assessment of the quality of the audit, the
handling of key judgements by the auditor, and the auditor’s response to questions from the committee.

D NICOLSON

Donald Nicolson
Audit Committee Chair
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Remuneration Committee Report

Scirocco’s Remuneration Committee reviews the scale and structure of the Executive Directors’ remuneration and the
terms of their service contracts.

The remuneration and terms and conditions of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are set by the Board with
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee.

Mr Alastair Ferguson chairs the committee and Mr Donald Nicolson is the other member. The Remuneration
Committee met 4 times in 2022.

In setting the remuneration for the Executive Directors and key staff, the committee compares published remuneration
data for other AIM and Main LSE Board energy transition companies of a similar market capitalisation and seeks to
ensure that the remuneration of the Executive Directors is broadly comparable to their peers in other similarly sized
organisations. Moving forward the committee intends to broaden the group of companies it reviews in this regard to
include low carbon and renewable companies of a similar standing.

In 2022 the Remuneration Committee supported the company in a number of changes to the remuneration policy and
compensation payments due to directors, these included;

« continued implementation of the share option scheme in lieu of fees for the Board and Executive
Management which supports the Board's desire to preserve the Company's cash position.

Alastair Ferguson
Remuneration Committee Chair
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AIM Rules Compliance and Disclosures Committee

Scirocco’s AIM Rules Compliance and Disclosures Committee is responsible for ensuring the Company has, at all
times, sufficient procedures, resources and controls in place to enable compliance with the AIM Rules for Companies
and make accurate disclosures to meet its disclosure obligations under MAR.

The committee was comprised of Alastair Ferguson (current Chairman), Donald Nicolson, and Tom Reynolds. The
work of the committee has been managed at the Board level with the plan to formally reconstitute the committee as
activity levels ramp up in 2023 and beyond.

The Committee has established protocols to:

Ensure that each meeting of the full Board includes discussions of AIM matters, in particular to brief
the Board as to issues raised with the Nomad and advice given, as they arise;

Ensure that the executive Directors are communicating as necessary with the Company's Nomad
regarding ongoing compliance with the AIM Rules and in relation to proposed or potential
transactions;

Ensure that advice received from the Nomad is recorded and taken into account;

Ensure that all announcements made have been verified and approved by the Nomad whose name
must be on all material announcements to RNS;

Ensure that the Nomad is supplied with information on the Company’s financial condition on a regular
and timely basis and of any other key developments in the Company from time to time;
Ensure that the Nomad is maintaining regular contact with the Company;

Circulate to other members of the Board details of any rule changes which are notified to the
Chairman of the Committee by the Nomad; and

Ensure that the executive Directors take into account advice given by the Nomad from time to time.

Alastair Ferguson
AIM Rules Compliance and Disclosures Committee Chair
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ESG and Sustainability Committee Report

The ESG and Sustainability Committee was established by the Company’s Board of Directors and has the
responsibility for shaping and steering the Group’s approach to sustainability and ESG in all its investments.

The ESG Committee was set up in September 2021 when it held the first formal meeting and met 4 times in the year.
The Committee is integral to the new Company Investment Strategy to invest in sustainable energy assets, as adopted
and approved by shareholders at the 2021 AGM. During the course of 2021 and 2022, the Committee has completed
the following work:

* Developed and approved a Terms of Reference for the ESG Committee going forward which
supports the Company’s new Investment strategy.

* Following review, agreed to using the UN Sustainable Development Goals (UNSDGs) as the
foundation of the Companies sustainability strategy, as it provides the Company with a structured
environmental, social, and governance (ESG) framework. The UNSDGs aim to tackle the global
challenges we face, including poverty, inequality, and climate change, by 2030.

* Reviewed each of the 17 UN Sustainable Development Goals as part of a workshop to determine
which of the Goals are most relevant to Scirocco and how much the Company can contribute to each
Goal.

+  Set commitments and targets for the four high priority UN Sustainable Development Goals with the
aim of integrating these as part of the Company’s new investment strategy.

Alastair Ferguson
ESG and Sustainability Committee Chair
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Scirocco Energy Plc (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the
‘group’) for the year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated and Parent Company Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated and Parent
Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the Parent Company Statements of Cash Flows and notes to the financial
statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and UK-adopted international accounting standards and as regards the parent company
financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion:
. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the group loss for the year then ended;

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards;

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006; and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 1 in the financial statements, under the heading ‘Going concern’ concerning the ability of
the group and parent company to continue as a going concern. The group and parent company’s forecasts and
projections indicate that the group and parent company has sufficient cash reserves to operate within the level of its
current facilities due to the expected cash inflow from the sale of Ruvuma asset which is expected to be completed
in August 2023. However, in the event that the sale does not go ahead, the Group will be obligated to pay the existing
loan of £2.9m to ARA Petroleum Tanzania. This amount is included within disposal assets (Note 15) as it will not be
payable if the sale gets completed. Failure to complete this transaction, may result in the group and parent company
needing to raise additional funds within twelve months of the date of approval of these financial statements, to meet
their ongoing working capital requirements. The current projections are reliant on the success of the sale transaction
and the ability to raise additional funds, both of which are dependent on external factors.

As stated in note 1, these events or conditions, along with the other matters as set forth in note 1, indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the group and company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment
of the group and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

« Reviewing the cash flow forecasts prepared by management for the period up to twelve months from the
date of approval of these financial statements

« Corroborating, providing challenge to key assumptions and reviewing for reasonableness;

« Comparing actual results for the year to past budgets to assess the forecasting ability/accuracy of
management;

- Reviewing of the progress of sale transaction of Ruvuma asset including corroborating with external evidence
and assessing the reliance of group and parent company's cash management on success and timing of this
transaction; and

« Assessing the adequacy of going concern disclosures within the annual report and financial statements.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report

Our application of materiality

The quantitative and qualitative thresholds for materiality determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures

Based on our professional judgement, we determined overall materiality for the financial statements as a whole
applied to the group financial statements was £131,000 (2021: £188,000) based on 1% of gross assets. The
performance materiality for the group was £91,000 (£131,000). The materiality for the financial statements as a whole
applied to the parent company financial statements was £117,900 (2021: £186,000) based on 1% of gross assets.
We based the materiality on gross assets because it aligns with the principal activity of the Group to acquire assets
in sustainable energy markets. The performance materiality for the parent company was £82,530 (2020: £130,000).

We use a different level of materiality (‘performance materiality’) to determine the extent of our testing for the audit of
the financial statements. Performance materiality is set based on 70% of overall materiality as adjusted for the
judgements made as to the entity risk and our evaluation of the specific risk of each audit area having regard to the
internal control environment.

Where considered appropriate performance materiality may be reduced to a lower level, such as, for related
party transactions and directors’ remuneration.

We agreed with the Audit Committee to report to it all identified errors in excess of £6,550 for the group and £5,895
(2021:£9,300) for the parent company. Errors below that threshold would also be reported to it if, in our opinion as
auditor, disclosure was required on qualitative grounds.

Our approach to the audit

In designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular we looked at areas involving significant accounting estimates and judgements by the
directors in respect of the carrying values of the group and parent company’s investments and intangible assets, and
considered future events that are inherently uncertain. We also addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, including evaluation whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy,
the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key Audit Matter

Carrying value of loan receivable from related party
(Note 16)

The group has granted a loan amounting to £1.2 million to
its joint venture. The joint venture has used this loan to
invest in an anaerobic digestion plants operating entity.
The carrying value of the loan to the joint venture is
dependent on the performance of its subsidiary

Management's forecasts to support the recoverability
involve estimates and judgements on the valuation of the
subsidiary of the joint venture. There is a risk that these
recoverable balances have not been valued in accordance
IFRS 9 and require impairment and therefore has been
assessed as a key audit matter.

How our scope addressed this matter

Our work in this area included but was not limited to:

. Reviewing the consolidated operational results
of the joint venture.
. Obtaining management's assessment and net

present value calculations supporting the carrying value
of the loans;

. Reviewing the assessment and challenging the
assumptions and inputs by corroborating with industry
benchmarks and performing sensitivity tests.

. Reviewing the movement in intercompany
receivables to ensure it is accounted for and disclosed
correctly in line with IFRS 9.

. Ensuring that appropriate  disclosures
surrounding the estimates made in respect of any
valuations are included in the financial statements.
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Valuation and impairment of Intercompany
receivables (Note 16)

The Group are carrying assets held for disposal of
£10,715k (which forms 80% of the gross assets of the
group) comprising of capitalised deferred exploration and
evaluation expenditure in relation Ruvuma asset.
Management have been actively pursuing several markets
on potentially selling the assets and a buyer has been
identified during the year and sale agreement has been
entered into.

There is a risk that these are not accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 and the assets are not carried at
fair value and an impairment may be necessary.

The sale agreement has a conditional payment structure
and the management have to apply judgement to
determine the realisable value of the asset.

Our work in this area included but was not limited to:

. Obtaining and reviewing management's
assessment of the carrying value of assets held for sale;
. Reviewing the fair value calculations for
mathematical accuracy and challenging the inputs and
assumptions used by the management by corroborating
these with external evidence;

: Reviewing the terms and payment structure
from the sale agreement with ARA Petroleum Tanzania
and assessing the probabilities of meeting the
conditional payment by reviewing the progress of the
transaction;

. Reviewing disclosures made in respect of the
assets and ensuring these are accurate and in
accordance with IFRS 5;

. Reviewing disclosures made in respect of any
linked liabilities as these will need to be separately
Given the significance of the assets held for sale balance disclosed as discontinued operations;
on the group and parent company's statement of financial
position and the significant management judgement
involved in the determination and the assessment of the
carrying values of these assets, this has been assessed

as a key audit matter.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report. Our opinion on the group and parent company financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the group and parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the group and parent company financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
group and the parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

« We obtained an understanding of the group and parent company and the sector in which they operate to
identify laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a direct effect on the financial
statements. We obtained our understanding in this regard through discussions with management, industry
research, application of cumulative audit knowledge and experience of the sector etc. This is evidenced by
discussion of laws and regulations with the management, reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged
with governance and RNS announcements and review of legal or professional expenditures.
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

« We determined the principal laws and regulations relevant to the group and parent company in this regard
to be those arising from Companies Act 2006, AIM rules, GDPR, Employment Law, Health and Safety Law,
Anti-Bribery and Money Laundering Regulations and QCA compliance.

« We designed our audit procedures to ensure the audit team considered whether there were any indications
of non-compliance by the group and parent company with those laws and regulations. These procedures
included, but were not limited to:

« Discussion with management regarding potential non-compliance;

. Review of legal and professional fees to understand the nature of the costs and the existence of
any non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

. Review of minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and RNS announcements

- We also identified the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements due to fraud. We considered,
in addition to the non-rebuttable presumption of a risk of fraud arising from management override of controls,
that the potential for management bias was identified in relation to the carrying value of the investments and
intangible assets.

« As in all of our audits, we addressed the risk of fraud arising from management override of controls by
performing audit procedures which included, but were not limited to: the testing of journals; reviewing
accounting estimates for evidence of bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business and review of bank statements during
the year to identify any large and unusual transactions where the business rationale is not clear.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases
the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also
greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment,
forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’'s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.

Other matters which we are required to address

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone, other than the company and the company's members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Zahir Khaki (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PKF Littlejohn LLP

Statutory Auditor

15 Westferry Circus, Canary Wharf, London E14 4HD
Date: 29 June 2023
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes
Share of profit in joint venture 5
Administrative expenses 6
Operating loss
Other income
Other gains and losses 8
Profit before taxation
Income tax expense 9
Profit for the year from continuing operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 10
Loss and total comprehensive income for the
year
Earnings per share 11

Basic and diluted

Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic
Diluted

Earnings per share from discontinued operations
Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 45 to 83 form part of these financial statements.

2022
£000

40
(1,613)
(1,573)

132

(1,438)

(1,438)

(3,377)

(4,815)

(0.57)

2021
£000

(1,892)
(1,892)

58
2,196

362

362

(4,053)

(3,691)

(0.49)

0.05
0.04
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
2022 2021
GROUP Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Loan receivable from related party 16 1,448 1,244
Investment in joint venture 14 40 -
1,488 1,244
Current assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 273 437
Trade and other receivables 16 210 153
Cash and cash equivalents 750 2,059
Assets held for sale 15 10,715 11,600
11,948 14,249
Total assets 13,436 15,493
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 224 178
Liabilities held for sale 15 3,110 166
3,334 344
Net current assets 8,614 13,905
Net assets 10,102 15,149
Equity
Called up share capital 18 1,801 1,518
Share premium account 19 38,408 38,155
Deferred share capital 18 1,831 2,729
Share based payments 20 2,071 1,941
Retained earnings (34,009) (29,194)
Total equity 10,102 15,149

The notes on pages 45 to 83 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 29 June 2023 and are

signed on its behalf by:
TOM REYNOLDS

Mr Tom Reynolds
Director

Company Registration No. 05542880
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

COMPANY

Non-current assets
Loan receivable from related party

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets held for sale

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Liabilities held for sale

Net current assets
Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Share premium account
Deferred share capital
Share based payments
Retained earnings

Total equity

The notes on pages 45 to 83 form part of these financial statements.

Notes

16

16

15

17
15

18
19
18
20

2022
£000

1,450

1,450

273
210
750
10,715

11,948

13,398

214
3,110

3,324

8,624

10,074

1,801
38,408
1,831
2,071

(34,037)

10,074

2021
£000

1,244

1,244

437
153
2,059
11,600

14,249

15,493

178
166

344

13,905

15,149

1,518
38,155
2,729
1,941

(29,194)

15,149

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under section 408 of the Companies act 2006 to not present a
Company statement of comprehensive income. Loss for the year for the Company was £4,843k.

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 29 June 2023 and are

signed on its behalf by:
TOM REYNOLDS

Mr Tom Reynolds
Director

Company Registration No. 05542880
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes

GROUP AND COMPANY
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash absorbed by operations

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Cash movements in relation to assets held
for sale

Loans granted to related party
Proceeds from disposal of investments

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares

Cash settlement of deferred shares not
issued

Loan proceeds in relation to assets held for
sale

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2022
£000 £000
(1,515)
(1,515)
(2,467)
(70)
161
(2,376)
(362)
2,944
2,582
(1,309)
2,059
750

2021
£000 £000
(1,417)
(1,417)
(642)
(1,200)
3,426
1,584
724
724
891
1,168
2,059
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Accounting policies
Company information
Scirocco Energy plc ("Scirocco”, the "Group") is a public listed company incorporated in England & Wales. The
address of its registered office 1 Park Row, Leeds, United Kingdom, LS1 5AB. The Company's ordinary shares
are traded on the AIM Market operated by the London Stock Exchange. The financial statements of Scirocco
Energy plc for the year ended 31 December 2022 were authorised for issue by the Board on 29 June 2023 and
the statement of financial position is signed on the Board's behalf by Mr Reynolds.

Investing policy

Scirocco's investing policy is to acquire a diverse portfolio of direct and indirect interests in sustainable energy
and circular economy assets within the European energy market. The Board is seeking to invest in opportunities
which meet the following criteria:

« cash generative, with the potential to re-invest operational cash flow in further growth;

« situated within the European energy space;

« acquisition targets within the low-carbon space, including renewable energy, circular economy and
energy storage and transfer sectors;

. assets which can attract the necessary investment capital, taking appropriate account of growing
investor sentiment towards ESG and SRl indicators; and

« assets which deliver stable returns, with lower exposure to global commodity prices.

The Company may invest by way of outright acquisition or by the acquisition of assets, including the intellectual
property, of a relevant business, partnerships or joint venture arrangements. Such investments may constitute
a minority stake in the company (which may be private or listed on a stock exchange, and which may be pre-
revenue) or project in question. The Company's investments may take the form of equity, joint venture debt,
convertible instruments, licence rights, or other financial instruments as the Directors deem appropriate.

Scirocco intends to be a long-term investor and the Directors will place no minimum or maximum limit on the
length of time that any investment may be held. There is no limit on the number of projects into which the
Company may invest, nor the proportion of the Company's gross assets that any investment may represent at
any time.

Statement of compliance with UK adopted IAS

The financial statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.
The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006
and not presented an income statement nor a statement of comprehensive income for the Company alone. The
principal accounting policies adopted by the Group are set out below.

Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the measurement to fair
value of assets and financial instruments as described in the accounting policies below, and on a going concern
basis.

The financial report is presented in Pound Sterling (£) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
pounds (£'000) unless otherwise stated. The functional currency of the Group and Company are also GBP.
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Going concern

The Directors note the losses that the Group has made for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Directors
have prepared cash flow forecasts for the period ending 30 June 2023 which take account of the current cost
and operational structure of the Group. The base case forecast takes account of the sale of Ruvuma to ARA
Petroleum Tanzania ("APT") and the loan structure provided within that structure to cover cash calls arising
from the asset. With the Ruvuma cash calls covered following the approval of shareholders at the general
meeting on 29th June 2022, the remaining cost structure of the Group comprises a proportion of discretionary
spend and therefore in the event that cash flows become constrained, costs can be reduced to enable the
Group to operate within its available funding. These forecasts demonstrate that the Group has sufficient cash
funds available, on the assumption that further funds can be sourced as and when needed, to allow it to continue
in business for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Comments on going
concern are included in the Operations report and note 1. Although the Ruvuma asset has been sold, no
guarantee can be made that the sale completes within 12 months of the approval of the financial statements.
The critical assumption in the going concern determination is that the Ruvuma PSA and the costs associated
with the development of the Ntoyra natural gas discovery are met by the Group drawing against the loan
provided by APT for its 25% interest. Based on this, there is material uncertainty present, given that draws on
the facility would become due in the event the sale does not complete. In the event the sale did not complete,
it is assumed that - if required - the Group would be able to access additional funding. If additional funding was
not available there is a risk that commitments could not be fulfilled, and assets would be relinquished.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2022. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

« Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee)

« Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee

« The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

« The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee
« Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
« The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, non-controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

Investment in joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

Ajoint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries. The Group’s investment in its associate and joint venture are accounted for
using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the
associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment separately.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint
venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of
the statement of profit or loss as part of operating loss and represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling
interests in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether
there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such
evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss within ‘Share of profit of an
associate and a joint venture’ in the statement of profit or loss.
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Current assets held for sale

Current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Discontinued operations

In accordance with IFRS 5 'Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations', the net results relating
to the assets held for sale are presented within discontinued operations in the income statement (for which the
comparatives have been restated) and the assets and liabilities of these operations are presented separately in
the balance sheet. Refer to note 10 for further details.

Fair value measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not change
when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under
IFRS when fair value is required or permitted. The resulting calculations under IFRS 13 affected the principles
that the Group uses to assess the fair value, but the assessment of fair value under IFRS 13 has not materially
changed the fair values recognised or disclosed. IFRS 13 mainly impacts the disclosures of the Group. It
requires specific disclosures about fair value measurements and disclosures of fair values, some of which
replace existing disclosure requirements in other standards.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the Group has become a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities in the following measurement categories:
. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through Other Comprehensive Income or
through profit or loss); and
« those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

Recognition and measurement

Afinancial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets are derecognised if the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets
expire or if the Group transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all
risks and rewards of the asset. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade
date, i.e. the date the Group commits itself to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. Currently, the Group’s financial assets are all held for collection
of contractual cash flows, which are solely payments of principal and interest. Accordingly, the Group's financial
assets are measured subsequent to initial recognition at amortised cost.
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment

On a forward-looking basis, the Group estimates the expected credit losses associated with its receivables
and other financial assets carried at amortised cost, and records a loss allowance for these expected losses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables outside of normal payment terms accrue interest at a rate determined by the
operator and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts.

Financial liability and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are non interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is held for trading. This is the case if:

. the asset has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking, or

« it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset. Interest and dividends are included in 'Investment income' and gains and losses on
remeasurement included in 'other gains and losses' in the statement of comprehensive income.

Equity reserves
Share capital is determined using the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

The share premium account represents premiums received on the initial issuing of the share capital. Any
transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium, net of any related
income tax benefits.

The share based payment reserve represents the cumulative amount which has been expensed in the income
statement in connection with share based payments, less any amounts transferred to retained earnings on the
exercise of share options.

Retained earnings includes all current and prior period results as disclosed in the income statement.

Deferred shares includes shares that have been allocated to investment partners that will be converted to share
capital when certain future conditions are met
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reporting end date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset, whereas a derivative with a negative
fair value is recognised as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or liability if the
remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled
within 12 months. Other derivatives are classified as current.
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The liability for current tax is calculated by
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction which affects
neither the tax profit not the accounting profit.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timings or amounts that have arisen as a result of past
transactions and are discounted at a pre-tax rate reflecting current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees, the fair value of the options at the date of grant is charged to
the income statement over the vesting period. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting
the number of equity instruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the modification, is also charged to the income statement over
the remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than employees, the income statement is charged with
the fair value of goods and services received. Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at a fair value
at the date of grant except if the value of the service can be reliably established. The fair value determined at
the grant date of equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than Sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on
retranslation are included in the income statement for the period.
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Oil and gas properties and other property, plant and equipment

(i) Initial recognition

Oil and gas properties and other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset into operation, the initial estimate of the decommissioning obligation and, for qualifying assets
(where relevant), borrowing costs. The purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate amount paid and
the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset. The capitalised value of a finance lease is
also included within property, plant and equipment.

When a development project moves into the production stage, the capitalisation of certain construction/
development costs ceases, and costs are either regarded as part of the cost of inventory or expensed, except
for costs which qualify for capitalisation relating to oil and gas property asset additions, improvements or new
developments.

(i) Depreciation/amortisation

Oil and gas properties are depreciated/amortised on a unit-of production basis over the total proved developed
and undeveloped reserves of the field concerned, except in the case of assets whose useful life is shorter than
the lifetime of the field, in which case the straight-line method is applied. Rights and concessions are depleted
on the unit-of-production basis over the total proved developed and undeveloped reserves of the relevant area.

The unit-of production rate calculation for the depreciation/amortisation of field development costs takes into
account expenditures incurred to date, together with sanctioned future development expenditure. An item of
property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the
asset is derecognised.

The asset's residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation/amortisation are reviewed at each
reporting period and adjusted prospectively.

(iii) Major maintenance, inspection and repairs

Expenditure on major maintenance refits, inspections or repairs comprises the cost of replacement assets or
parts of asset, inspection costs and overhaul costs. Where an asset, or part of an asset that was separately
depreciated and is now written off is replaced and it is probably that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group, the expenditure will be capitalised. Where part of the asset replaced was not
separately considered as a component and therefore not depreciated separately, the replacement value is used
to estimate the carrying amount of the replaced asset(s) and is immediately written off. Inspection costs
associated with major maintenance programmes are capitalised and amortised over the period of the next
inspection. All other day-to-day repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Provision for rehabilitation / Decommissioning Liability
The Group recognises a decommissioning liability where it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, and it is probably that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.

The obligation generally arises when the asset is installed or the ground/environment is disturbed at the field
location. When the liability is initially recognised, the present value of the estimated costs is capitalised by
increasing the carrying amount of the related oil and gas assets to the extent that it is incurred by the
development/construction of the field. Any decommissioning obligations that arise through the production of
inventory are expensed when the inventory item is recognised in cost of goods sold.

Changes in the estimated timing or cost of decommissioning are dealt with prospectively by recording an
adjustment to the provision and a corresponding adjustment to oil and gas assets. Any reduction in the
decommissioning liability and, therefore, any deduction from the asset to which it relates, may not exceed the
carrying amount of that asset. If it does, any excess over the carrying value is taken immediately to the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Segmental reporting

A business segment is a group of assets or operations engaged in providing services that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing services within a particular economic environment that is subject to different risks and returns from
other segments in other economic environments. The company has two segments; corporate head office costs
and Tanzania.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as Thomas Reynolds that makes strategic
decisions. Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis.

Investments

The Group’s financial asset investments are classified and measured at fair value, under IFRS 9, with changes
in fair value recognised in profit and loss as they arise.

Gains and losses on investments disposed of or identified are included in the net profit or loss for the period.

Investments held by the Group are held for resale, therefore where the Group’s equity stake in an investee
company is 20% or more, equity accounting for these associates is not considered to be appropriate.
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2 Adoption of new and revised standards and changes in accounting policies

In the current year, the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted by the
Company. The adoption of these standards has had no impact on the current period however may have an
effect on future periods.

IFRS 3 (Amendments)

IAS 16 (Amendments)

IAS 37 (Amendments)

IFRIC

Reference to the conceptual framework

Property, plant and equipment - proceeds before
intended use

Onerous contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract

Amendments to IFRS 1 (subsidiary as a first-time
adopter), IFRS 9 (fees in the '10 liabilities), IFRS
16 (lease incentives), IAS 41 (taxation in the fair
value measurements)

1 January 2022

1 January 2022

1 January 2022

1 January 2022

Standards which are in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations, which
have not yet been applied in these financial statements, were in issue but not yet effective (and in some cases
had not yet been adopted by the United Kingdom):

IFRS 17

IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

IAS 8 (Amendments)

IAS 12 (Amendments)

IFRS 16 (Amendments)

IAS 1 (Amendments)

IAS 1 (Amendments)

Insurance contracts

Disclosure of accounting policies

Definition of accounting estimates

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising
from a single transaction

Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
- deferral of effective date

Non-current liabilities with covenants

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the other Standards listed above will have a material impact
on the financial statements of the Company aside from additional disclosures.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual experience may differ from these
estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of expenses during the period.
Actual results may vary from the estimates used to produce these Financial Statements.

Estimates and judgements are regularly evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Items subject to such estimates and assumptions, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial years, include but are not limited to:

Share-based payments (note 20)

The Group utilised an equity-settled share-based remuneration scheme for employees. Employee services
received, and the corresponding increase in equity, are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date of grant, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions. The fair value of
share options are estimated by using Black-Scholes valuation method as at the date of grant. The assumptions
used in the valuation are described in Note 21 and include, among others, the expected volatility, expected life
of the options and number of options expected to vest.

Deferred taxation (note 9)
Deferred tax assets are recognised when it is judged more likely than not that they will be recovered. Deferred
tax assets are currently nil based on the likelihood of recovery.

Recoverability of assets held for sale (note 15)

The Company assesses assets held for sale each reporting period to determine whether any indication of
impairment exists. Where an indicator of impairment exists, a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is
made, which is considered to be the fair value less costs of sale. The assessments require the use of estimates
and assumptions such as long-term oil prices (considering current and historical prices, price trends and related
factors), discount rates, operating costs, future capital requirements, decommissioning costs, exploration
potential reserves (see(a) Hydrocarbon reserves and resource estimates above) and operating performance
(which includes production and sales volumes). These estimates and assumptions are subject to risk and
uncertainty. Therefore, there is possibility that changes in circumstances will impact these projections, which
may impact the recoverable amount of assets and/or CGUs.

The total loan from ARA Petroleum Tanzania (£2,944Kk) is a part of the disposal group. This is made up of funding
for the cash calls during the interim period as well as the initial loan amount of $500k (Note 10).

Recoverability of loan receivable from joint venture (note 16)

The Company has determined that the loan to the joint venture is fully recoverable and enforceable based on a
signed loan agreement and the value of the underlying company. At the time of signing the financial statements
the loan was repayable on demand, but will not be callable within twelve months of the signing of the financial
statements. The loan has been classifed as a non-current asset, reflecting Management's intention.

Decommissioning provisions (note 15)
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

There is uncertainty around the cost of decommissioning as cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors, including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new technology or experience
at other assets. The expected timing, work scope and amount and currency mix of expenditure may also change.
Therefore, significant estimates and assumptions are made in determining the provision for decommissioning.

The estimated decommissioning costs are reviewed annually. Provision for environmental clean-up and
remediation costs is based on current legal and contractual requirements, technology and management's
estimate of costs with reference to current price levels. Future cost estimates are discounted to present value
using a rate that approximates the time value of money, which is currently 5.89%. The discount rate is based
on the average yield on Tanzanian Government bonds for foreign currency loans of a duration of more than 10
years. The company assess the reasonableness of the decomissioning provision annually and believes it
represents a fair view of the potential liability.

4  Operating Segments

Based on risks and returned, the directors consider that the primary reporting format is by business segment. The
directors consider that there are two business segments:

« Head office support from the UK

« Discontinued operations on its investments in Tanzania

Continuing Discontinued
Operations Operations

2022 UK Tanzania Total

£000 £000 £000
Revenue 40 - 40
Administrative expenses (1,613) - (1,613)
Interest income 134 - 134
Other gains and losses 3 (3,377) (3,374)
Other income (2) - (2)
(Loss) from operations per reportable segment (1,438) (3,377) (4,815)
Additions to non-current assets 244 - 244
Reportable segment assets 2477 10,715 13,192
Reportable segment liabilities 224 3,110 3,334
2021 Total Tanzania Total

£000 £000 £000
Administrative expenses (1,890) - (1,890)
Interest income - 12 12
Finance costs (2) - (2)
Other gains and losses 2,196 (4,065) (1,869)
Other income 58 - 58
Profit/(Loss) from operations per reportable segment 362 (4,053) (3,691)
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4  Operating Segments (Continued)
Additions to non-current assets 26 - 26
Reportable segment assets 3,846 11,600 15,446
Reportable segment liabilities 157 166 323

5 Revenue

2022 2021
£000 £000
Share of profit in joint venture 40 -
Interest income - 12
40 12

Contract balances
2022 2021
£000 £000

Trade receivables - -
Accrued income and interest - -

Trade receivables accrue interest for non payment. Outstanding trade debtors accrue interest at a rate in
accordance with the joint venture agreement and are generally on terms of 30 days. In 2022, there is a provision
of £nil (2021: nil) for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

Interest income relates to interest charged on outstanding invoices.

An operating segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about the allocation of resources and assessment
of performance and about which discrete financial information is available.
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6 Expenses by Nature

2022 2021
Continuing Operations £000 £000
Exchange (gains)/losses (169) 8
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's
financial statements 74 19
Professional, legal and consulting fees 752 920
AIM related costs including investor relations 134 157
Accounting related services 152 93
Travel and subsistence 18 -
Office and administrative expenses 104 87
Other expenses 2 38
Share-based payments 130 471
Directors remuneration 334 94
Wages and salaries and other related costs 82 5

1,613 1,892

7 Employees

The average number of employees (excluding executive directors) was one (2021:1).

During the year ended 31 December 2022 the Directors opted to receive remuneration in the form of share
options in lieu of fees (note 20).

2022 2021
£000 £000
Their aggregate remuneration comprised :
Wages and salaries 44 1"
Directors remuneration 334 94
Salary and Share-based Termination Total
fees payments payments
£000 £000 £000 £000
Year ended 31 December 2022
Alastair Ferguson 75 25 - 100
Tom Reynolds 200 25 - 225
Donald Nicolson 33 41 - 74
Muir Miller (appointed 18 February 2021) 26 27 - 53
Doug Rycroft (senior management) - 12 - 12
334 130 - 464
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7 Employees

Salary and Share-based Termination

Year ended 31 December 2021

Jonathan Fitzpatrick (resigned 9 July 2021)
Alastair Ferguson

Tom Reynolds

Donald Nicolson

Muir Miller (appointed 18 February 2021)
Doug Rycroft (senior management)

fees
£000

(7)
91
10

No directors received pension contributions in 2022 or 2021.

8 Other gains and losses

Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Impairment of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

9 Income tax expense

UK corporation tax on profits for the current period
Total UK current tax

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total tax charge

payments payments

£000 £000

36 -

140 -

146 -

89 -
35

25 -

471 ;

2022

£000

61

(58)

3

2022

£000

(Continued)

Total

£000

2021
£000

2,196

2,196

2021
£000
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9 Income tax expense (Continued)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss per the income statement as follows:

2022 2021

£000 £000
(Loss) before taxation (4,815) (3,692)
Expected tax credit based on a corporation tax rate of 19.00% (2021: 19.00%) (915) (701)
Effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit 754 837
Income not taxable (35) (420)
Remeasurement of deferred tax for changes in tax rates 187 (45)
Chargeable gains 9 329

Taxation charge for the year - -

No deferred tax asset has been recognised because there is uncertainty of the timing of suitable future profits
against which they can be recovered. The company has losses carried forward of £7,079k (2021 - £6,312k).
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10 Discontinued operations

The Company has a 25% interest in a high-quality development project in Tanzania which the Directors are
actively seeking to divest. This stake has been valued at $16m and operations relating to this stake are detailed
below. For details on the divestment please refer to the Strategic Report.

The results of the discontinued business, which have been included in the income statement, balance sheet
and cash flow statement, were as follows:

2022 2021

£000 £000
Impairment on fair value revaluation (3,377) (3,846)
Investment losses - (207)
Net loss attributable to discontinuation (3,377) (4,053)
The loss after tax on carrying value of assets held for sale is made up as follows:

2022
£000
Fair value less costs to sell 7,605
Net book value of assets disposed:
Intangible assets (18,368)
Oil and gas properties (380)
Loan to ARA Petroleum 2,944
Decommissioning provision 166
Impairment on fair value revaluation at 31 December 2021 4,656
(10,982)

Impairment on fair value revaluation at 31 December 2022 (3,377)
Loss per share impact from discontinued operations

2022 2021
Basic impact (pence) (0.40) (0.51)

Diluted impact (pence) - -
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10

1"

Discontinued operations (Continued)

Cash flow statement

2022 2021

£000 £000
Net cash flows from financing activities 2,467 -
Net cash flows from investing activities (2,467) (642)
Net cash flows from discontinued operations - (642)

Loan from ARA Petroleum includes £500k initial loan amount which was not used to fund cash calls for the
asset. The remaining cash received from financing activities was used for other operational expenses. The full
liability has been included as part of the disposal group.

Earnings per share

The calculation of loss per share is based on the loss after taxation divided by the weighted average number of
shares in issue during the year.

2022 2021
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic profit/loss per share
(000) 838,753 758,788
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted profit per share (000) 953,162 854,621
Earnings £000 £000
Continuing operations
(Loss) / profit for the period from continued operations (1,438) 361
Discontinued operations
(Loss) for the period from discontinued operations (3,377) (4,053)
Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations (pence per share) (0.17) 0.05
From discontinued operations (pence per share) (0.40) (0.53)
(0.57) (0.49)

Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations (pence per share) - 0.04
From discontinued operations (pence per share) - -
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12 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

GROUP AND COMPANY

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Quoted equity investments
Unquoted equity investments

2022
£000

206

2021
£000

The quoted investments in the current year relate to an equity investment held in Helium One Ltd, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Their subsidiaries hold helium mining licences across Tanzania. The

shares held have been valued at the mark-to-market value of 7.1p per share at 31 December 2022.

The unquoted investments in the current year relate to an equity investment held in Corallian Energy Limited, a
company incorporated in England. The Company holds interests in oil and gas basins in the United Kingdom.

Unquoted Equity Investments

At 1 January 2021
Remeasurement

At 1 January 2022
Remeasurement

At 31 December 2022

Remeasurement of the unquoted equity investment is based on a post year-end sale.

13 Subsidiaries

Details of the company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Name of undertaking Registered office Principal activities

Scirocco Energy International 1 Park Row, Leeds, United Kingdom, Dormant Holding

Limited LS1 5AB Company

Scirocco Energy (UK) Limited 1 Park Row, Leeds, United Kingdom, Investment Holding
LS1 5AB Company

The results of all subsidiaries are included within the consolidated results of Scirocco Energy plc.

Class of
shares held

Ordinary

Ordinary

£000

125

125
(58)
67

% Held
Direct

100.00

100.00

Under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, Scirocco Energy PLC agrees that Scirocco Energy (UK)
Limited is exempt from audit. Under section 479C, Scirocco Energy PLC guarantees all outstanding liabilities

for the subsidiary.
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14

Joint ventures

The Group has a 50% (2021: 50%) interest in joint venture, Energy Acquisitions Group Limited, a company
incorporated in Northern Ireland. The primary activity of Energy Acquisitions Group Limited is to acquire and
finance renewable energy assets in the United Kingdom.

The Group’s interest in EAG is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.
Summarised financial information of the joint venture, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the
investment in the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Name of undertaking Registered office Principal activities Class of % Held
shares held Direct
Energy Acquisitions Group 32 Lodge Road, Coleraine, Investment in Ordinary 50.00
Limited Northern Ireland, BT52 1NB renewable energy
assets

Energy Acquisitions Group Limited consolidated summary statement of financial position (unaudited)

2022 2021

£000 £000
Non-current assets 2,960 2,808
Current assets 593 445
Current liabilities (113) (411)
Non-current liabilities (3,360) (2,985)
The following amounts have been included in the amounts above
Cash and cash equivalents 326 245
Current financial liabilities (113) (411)
Non-current financial liabilities (3,360) (2,985)
Net Assets (100%) 80 (143)
Group share of net assets (50%) 40 (72)

The prior year investment in joint venture was £100 which has been rounded to £0 in these financial
statements.

Energy Acquisitions Group Limited consolidated summary profit and loss account (unaudited)

2022 2021

£000 £000
Revenue 1,414 1,164
Direct Costs (561) (557)
Overhead and administrative expenses (297) (32)
Interest payable and similar expenses (334) (655)
Profit/(loss) before tax for the financial year 222 (80)
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14

15

Joint ventures (Continued)

The following amounts have been included in the amounts above

Depreciation and amortisation 62 (223)
Interest income - -
Interest expense 334 655
Income tax expense - 52

There were no dividends received from the joint venture during the year and there are no dividends forecast.

The joint venture had no contingent liabilities or commitments as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The financial
statements of the JV are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments
are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group. Presentation of the summarised
financial information has been made on the basis of the Joint Venture's published financial statements.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

2022 2021
GROUP AND COMPANY £000 £000
Intangible assets 10,714 11,246
Oil and gas properties - 354
Total assets classified as held for sale 10,714 11,600
Loan 2,944 -
Decommissioning provision 166 166
Total liabilities classified as held for sale 3,110 166

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements it was determined that a sale would be highly probable
(see note 10).
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16 Trade and other receivables

GROUP

Current

Other receivables
VAT recoverable
Prepayments

Non current
Loan receivable from joint venture

2022
£000

96
74

210

1,44

[os}

2021
£000

111
21

153

1,244

The directors have assessed the trade and other receivables for impairment and consider that the carrying

amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

COMPANY

Other receivables
VAT recoverable
Prepayments

Non current
Loan receivable from subsidiary

2022
£000

96
74

210

1,450

2021
£000

The directors have assessed the trade and other receivables for impairment and consider that the carrying

amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

17 Trade and other payables
GROUP
Trade payables

Accruals
Other payables

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.

2022
£000

38
65
121

224

2021
£000

142
36

178
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17 Trade and other payables (Continued)
2022 2021

COMPANY £000 £000
Trade payables 38 142
Accruals 55 36
Other payables 121 -

214 178

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.
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18

a)

b)

c)

d)

19

Share capital

GROUP AND COMPANY

Number of shares

Called up, allotted, issued and fully paid: Ordinary shares of 0.2 p each

At 31 December 2021 758,787,925
Issuance of shares at 0.02p 141,708,163
At 31 December 2022 900,496,088
Deferred shares

2022

£000
At beginning of year 2,729
Shares not issued moved to deferred share capital 19
Issue of new shares (556)
Consideration received for shares to be issued -
Cash settlement of shares not issued (180)
Reclassify shares not issued as current liability (181)
At end of year 1,831

Total Share options in issue

Nominal value
£000

1,518

283

1,801

2021
£000

1,831
536
(362)
724

2,729

During the year no incentive options were granted (2021: nil). As at 31 December 2022 there were 51,419,781

incentive options in issue (2021: 51,419,781)

During the year 26,733,539 (2021: 24,997,841) share options in lieu of salary and/or fees due to the relevant
option holders were granted. As at 31 December 2022 there were 70,787,245 share options in lieu of salary

and/or fees in issue (2021: 44,053,706).

Total warrants in issue

All warrants lapsed in the year and no warrants were issued, cancelled or exercised during
no warrants were issued).

As at 31 December 2022 there were no warrants outstanding (2021: 12,500,000).

Share premium account

the year (2021:

2022 2021

£000 £000
At the beginning of the year 38,155 38,399
Issue of new shares 253 292
Other movements - (536)
At the end of the year 38,408 38,155
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20 Share based payment
GROUP AND COMPANY

The Company has opted to remunerate the directors for the year to 31 December 2022 by a grant of an option
over the ordinary shares of the capital of the Company as detailed in the deed of option grants. The life of the
options is 18 months. There are three executive directors and two non-executive directors who are members of
the plan. The following table summarises the expense recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
since the options were granted.

2022 2021
£000 £000
Directors options 130 285
Incentive options - 186
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments 130 471

During June 2020 (and the height of the Covid-19 pandemic) the Company sought to put in place a strategy that
would help to conserve the Company's cash position in the near term and also to maximise alignment between
the Board, Management Team and Shareholders.

Accordingly, the Company proposed to grant nominal cost options over new Ordinary Shares of 0.2p (£0.0020)
to Directors and select members of the Management Team (“the Director Options”). The Director Options were
granted over a total of 26,733,539 (2021: 24,997,841) Ordinary Shares and have an aggregate value equal (on
a net basis, after deduction of the nominal exercise price per Ordinary Share) to the fair value of salary and/or
fees due to the relevant option holders up to December 2022.

Members of the Management Team were also awarded options over Ordinary Shares with an exercise price of
1.3p (£0.013) (“the Incentive Options”), which was approximately a 24% premium to the closing midmarket price
of the Company's Ordinary Shares on 26 June 2020. Each Incentive Option is ordinarily exercisable on the 2nd
anniversary of the grant date (being 30 June 2022), except in the event of specified corporate events or,
exceptionally, if the option holder leaves as a 'good leaver'.

The Company used the Black-Scholes model to determine the value of the incentive options and the inputs. The
value of the options and the inputs for the year ended 31 December 2022 were as follows:
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20 Share based payment (Continued)
Issue 30 June 2020

Incentive options

Share price at grant (pence) 1.09
Exercise price at grant (pence) 1.30
Expected volatility (%) 84.42
Expected life (years) 6
Risk free rate (%) 0.17
Expected dividends (pence) nil

21

Expected volatility was determined by using the Company's share price for the preceding 3 years.

The total share-based payment expense in the year for the Company was £86,806 in relation to the issue of
incentive options (2021: £186,013) and £nil finance charges in relation to warrants (2021: £nil).

The Incentive Options granted represent approximately 7.9% of the Company's issued share capital (excluding
warrants issued to Prolific Basins LLC). The Board has retained additional headroom for future Incentive Options
as it recognises that the future performance of the Company will be dependent on its ability to retain the services
of key executives.

Financial instruments
GROUP

Categories of financial instruments

The following table combines information about:
« Classes of financial instruments based on their nature and characteristics; and
« The carrying amounts of financial instruments.

2022 2021
£000 £000
Financial assets at amortised cost
Other debtors 96 111
Prepayments and accrued income 40 21
Cash and cash equivalents 750 2,059
Loan to joint venture 1,448 1,244
2,334 3,435
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21 Financial instruments (Continued)
Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
2022 2022 2021 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets at fair value
Non-current Investment - Helium One 206 206 312 312
Non-current Investment - Corallian
Energy Limited 67 67 125 125
273 273 437 437
2022 2021
£000 £000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade payables 38 142
Accruals and deferred income 65 36
Other payables 121 -
224 178

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:
« Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
« Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e derived from prices).
« Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair values for the Company's assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying values in the
financial statements.

The following table presents the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Non-current Investment - Helium One 206 - - 206
Non-current Investment - Corallian

Energy Limited - - 67 67

206 - 67 273

The Company does not have any liabilities measured at fair value. There have been no transfers in to or transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels in the period.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Company is the current bid price.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely
as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. No investments are valued using level 2 inputs in the period.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level
3. Following the guidance of IFRS 9, these financial instruments have been assessed to determine the fair value of
the instrument. In their assessment, the Directors have considered both external and internal indicators to decide
whether an impairment charge must be made or whether there needs to be a fair value uplift on the instrument.
Instruments included in Level 3 comprise of the Corallian investment. Details of this can be found at Note 12.

The carrying value of the Company's financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost are approximately
equal to their fair value.

The Company is exposed through its operations to one or more of the following financial risks:
- Fair value or cash flow interest rate risk

Foreign currency risk

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk in specific regard to sale of Ruvuma asset not completing

Credit risk

Market risk

Expected credit losses

Policy for managing these risks is set by the Board. The policy for each of the above risks is described in more
detail below.

Fair value and cashflow interest rate risk

Generally the Company has a policy of holding debt at a floating rate. The directors will revisit the appropriateness
of this policy should the Company’s operations change in size or nature. Operations are not permitted to borrow
long-term from external sources locally.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises because the Company has operations located in various parts of the world whose
functional currency is not the same as the functional currency in which the Company’s investments are operating.
The Company’s net assets are exposed to currency risk giving rise to gains or losses on retranslation into sterling.
Only in exceptional circumstances will the Company consider hedging its net investments in overseas operations
as generally it does not consider that the reduction in volatility in net assets warrants the cash flow risk created from
such hedging techniques.

-72-



SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

21

Financial instruments (Continued)

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period is summarised below.
All amounts are presented in GBP equivalent in the statement of financial position.

2022 2021

$000 $000

usbD usbD
Trade and other receivables 116 150
Cash and cash equivalents 878 1,415
Trade and other payables - (166)
Net exposure 994 1,399

Sensitivity analysis

As shown in the table above, the Company is primarily exposed to changes in the GBP:USD exchange rate through
its cash balance held in USD and trading balances. The table below shows the impact in GBP on pre-tax profit and
loss of a 10% increase/decrease in the GBP to USD exchange rate, holding all other variables constant.

2022 2021

£000 £000
GBP:USD exchange rate increases 10% 136 116
GBP:USD exchange rate decreases 10% (69) (142)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of each entity is managed centrally by the treasury function. Each operation has a facility with
treasury, the amount of the facility being based on budgets. The budgets are set locally and agreed by the board
annually in advance, enabling the cash requirements to be anticipated. Where facilities of entities need to be
increased, approval must be sought from the finance director. Where the amount of the facility is above a certain
level agreement of the board is needed.

All surplus cash is held centrally to maximise the returns on deposits through economies of scale. The type of cash
instrument used and its maturity date will depend on the forecast cash requirements.

The table below analyses the company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their
contractual maturities. The amounts presented are the undiscounted cash flows.

Less than 6 6 to 12 months Between 1 and Between 2

months 2 years and 5 years
£000 £000 £000 £000
31 December 2022
Trade and other payables 224 - - -
31 December 2021
Trade and other payables 178 - - -
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Credit risk

The Company is mainly exposed to credit risk from credit sales. It is Company policy, implemented locally, to access
the credit risk of new customers before entering contracts. Such credit ratings are taken into account by local
business practices.

The Company does not enter into complex derivatives to manage credit risk, although in certain isolated cases may
take steps to mitigate such risks if it is sufficiently concentrated.

Market risk

As the Company is now investing in listed companies, the market risk will be that of finding suitable investments for
the Company to invest in and the returns that those investments will return given the markets that in which
investments are made.

Expected credit losses

Allowances are recognised as required under the IFRS 9 impairment model and continue to be carried until there
are indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

For trade and other receivables which do not contain a significant financing component, the Company applies the
simplified approach. This approach requires the allowance for expected credit losses to be recognised at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses. For other debt financial assets the Company applies the general approach
to providing for expected credit losses as prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits for the recognition of an allowance
for the estimated expected loss resulting from default in the subsequent 12-month period. Exposure to credit loss
is monitored on a continual basis and, where material, the allowance for expected credit losses is adjusted to reflect
the risk of default during the lifetime of the financial asset should a significant change in credit risk be identified.

The majority of the Company's financial assets are expected to have a low risk of default. A review of the historical
occurrence of credit losses indicates that credit losses are insignificant due to the size of the Company's clients and
the nature of the services provided. The outlook for the oil and gas industry is not expected to result in a significant
change in the Company's exposure to credit losses. As lifetime expected credit losses are not expected to be
significant the Company has opted not to adopt the practical expedient available under IFRS 9 to utilise a provision
matrix for the recognition of lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables. Allowances are calculated on a
case-by-case basis based on the credit risk applicable to individual counterparties.

Exposure to credit risk is continually monitored in order to identify financial assets which experience a significant
change in credit risk. In assessing for significant changes in credit risk the Company makes use of operational
simplifications permitted by IFRS 9. The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk if the asset
has a low risk of default; the counterparty has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term; and no adverse changes in economic or business conditions have been identified which in the longer
term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the counterparty to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
Where a financial asset becomes more than 30 days past its due date additional procedures are performed to
determine the reasons for non-payment in order to identify if a change in the exposure to credit risk has occurred.

Should a significant change in the exposure to credit risk be identified the allowance for expected credit losses is
increased to reflect the risk of expected default in the lifetime of the financial asset. The Company continually
monitors for indications that a financial asset has become credit impaired with an allowance for credit impairment
recognised when the loss is incurred. Where a financial asset becomes more than 90 days past its due date
additional procedures are performed to determine the reasons for non-payment in order to identify if the asset has
become credit impaired.
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Financial instruments

The Company considers an asset to be credit impaired once there is evidence that a loss has been incurred. In
addition to recognising an allowance for expected credit loss, the Company monitors for the occurrence of events
that have a detrimental impact on the recoverability of financial assets. Evidence of credit impairment includes, but
is not limited to, indications of significant financial difficulty of the counterparty, a breach of contract or failure to
adhere to payment terms, bankruptcy or financial reorganisation of a counterparty or the disappearance of an active

market for the financial asset.

A financial asset is only written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

The Company employs the simplified approach to make an estimate of ECL. There are no outstanding balances as

at 31 December 2022 resulting in an ECL of £nil in the current year.

COMPANY

Categories of financial instruments

The following table combines information about:
« Classes of financial instruments based on their nature and characteristics; and
« The carrying amounts of financial instruments.

2022
£000
Financial assets at amortised cost
Other debtors 95
Prepayments and accrued income 40
Cash and cash equivalents 750
Loan to subsidiary 1,451
2,336

(Continued)

2021
£000

111
21
2,059
1,244

3,435
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21 Financial instruments (Continued)
Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
2022 2022 2021 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets at fair value
Non-current Investment - Helium One 206 206 312 312
Non-current Investment - Corallian
Energy Limited 67 67 125 125
273 273 437 437
2022 2021
£000 £000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade payables 38 142
Accruals and deferred income 55 36
Other payables 121 -
214 178

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:
« Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
« Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e derived from prices).
« Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair values for the Company's assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying values in the
financial statements.

The following table presents the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Non-current Investment - Helium One 206 - - 206
Non-current Investment - Corallian

Energy Limited - - 67 67

206 - 67 273

The Company does not have any liabilities measured at fair value. There have been no transfers in to or transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels in the period.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Company is the current bid price.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely
as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. No investments are valued using level 2 inputs in the period.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level
3. Following the guidance of IFRS 9, these financial instruments have been assessed to determine the fair value of
the instrument. In their assessment, the Directors have considered both external and internal indicators to decide
whether an impairment charge must be made or whether there needs to be a fair value uplift on the instrument.
Instruments included in Level 3 comprise of the Corallian investment. Details of this can be found at Note 12.

The carrying value of the Company's financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost are approximately
equal to their fair value.

The Company is exposed through its operations to one or more of the following financial risks:
- Fair value or cash flow interest rate risk

Foreign currency risk

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk in specific regard to sale of Ruvuma asset not completing

Credit risk

Market risk

Expected credit losses

Policy for managing these risks is set by the Board. The policy for each of the above risks is described in more
detail below.

Fair value and cashflow interest rate risk

Generally the Company has a policy of holding debt at a floating rate. The directors will revisit the appropriateness
of this policy should the Company’s operations change in size or nature. Operations are not permitted to borrow
long-term from external sources locally.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises because the Company has operations located in various parts of the world whose
functional currency is not the same as the functional currency in which the Company’s investments are operating.
The Company’s net assets are exposed to currency risk giving rise to gains or losses on retranslation into sterling.
Only in exceptional circumstances will the Company consider hedging its net investments in overseas operations
as generally it does not consider that the reduction in volatility in net assets warrants the cash flow risk created from
such hedging techniques.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period is summarised below.
All amounts are presented in GBP equivalent in the statement of financial position.

2022 2021

$000 $000

usbD usbD
Trade and other receivables 116 150
Cash and cash equivalents 878 1,415
Trade and other payables - (166)
Net exposure 994 1,399

Sensitivity analysis

As shown in the table above, the Company is primarily exposed to changes in the GBP:USD exchange rate through
its cash balance held in USD and trading balances. The table below shows the impact in GBP on pre-tax profit and
loss of a 10% increase/decrease in the GBP to USD exchange rate, holding all other variables constant.

2022 2021

£000 £000
GBP:USD exchange rate increases 10% 136 116
GBP:USD exchange rate decreases 10% (69) (142)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of each entity is managed centrally by the treasury function. Each operation has a facility with
treasury, the amount of the facility being based on budgets. The budgets are set locally and agreed by the board
annually in advance, enabling the cash requirements to be anticipated. Where facilities of entities need to be
increased, approval must be sought from the finance director. Where the amount of the facility is above a certain
level agreement of the board is needed.

All surplus cash is held centrally to maximise the returns on deposits through economies of scale. The type of cash
instrument used and its maturity date will depend on the forecast cash requirements.

The table below analyses the company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their
contractual maturities. The amounts presented are the undiscounted cash flows.

Less than 6 6 to 12 months Between 1 and Between 2

months 2 years and 5 years
£000 £000 £000 £000
31 December 2022
Trade and other payables 214 - - -
31 December 2021
Trade and other payables 178 - - -
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Credit risk

The Company is mainly exposed to credit risk from credit sales. It is Company policy, implemented locally, to access
the credit risk of new customers before entering contracts. Such credit ratings are taken into account by local
business practices.

The Company does not enter into complex derivatives to manage credit risk, although in certain isolated cases may
take steps to mitigate such risks if it is sufficiently concentrated.

Market risk

As the Company is now investing in listed companies, the market risk will be that of finding suitable investments for
the Company to invest in and the returns that those investments will return given the markets in which the
investments are made.

Expected credit losses

Allowances are recognised as required under the IFRS 9 impairment model and continue to be carried until there
are indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

For trade and other receivables which do not contain a significant financing component, the Company applies the
simplified approach. This approach requires the allowance for expected credit losses to be recognised at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses. For other debt financial assets the Company applies the general approach
to providing for expected credit losses as prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits for the recognition of an allowance
for the estimated expected loss resulting from default in the subsequent 12-month period. Exposure to credit loss
is monitored on a continual basis and, where material, the allowance for expected credit losses is adjusted to reflect
the risk of default during the lifetime of the financial asset should a significant change in credit risk be identified.

The majority of the Company's financial assets are expected to have a low risk of default. A review of the historical
occurrence of credit losses indicates that credit losses are insignificant due to the size of the Company's clients and
the nature of the services provided. The outlook for the oil and gas industry is not expected to result in a significant
change in the Company's exposure to credit losses. As lifetime expected credit losses are not expected to be
significant the Company has opted not to adopt the practical expedient available under IFRS 9 to utilise a provision
matrix for the recognition of lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables. Allowances are calculated on a
case-by-case basis based on the credit risk applicable to individual counterparties.

Exposure to credit risk is continually monitored in order to identify financial assets which experience a significant
change in credit risk. In assessing for significant changes in credit risk the Company makes use of operational
simplifications permitted by IFRS 9. The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk if the asset
has a low risk of default; the counterparty has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term; and no adverse changes in economic or business conditions have been identified which in the longer
term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the counterparty to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
Where a financial asset becomes more than 30 days past its due date additional procedures are performed to
determine the reasons for non-payment in order to identify if a change in the exposure to credit risk has occurred.

Should a significant change in the exposure to credit risk be identified the allowance for expected credit losses is
increased to reflect the risk of expected default in the lifetime of the financial asset. The Company continually
monitors for indications that a financial asset has become credit impaired with an allowance for credit impairment
recognised when the loss is incurred. Where a financial asset becomes more than 90 days past its due date
additional procedures are performed to determine the reasons for non-payment in order to identify if the asset has
become credit impaired.
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22

Financial instruments (Continued)

The Company considers an asset to be credit impaired once there is evidence that a loss has been incurred. In
addition to recognising an allowance for expected credit loss, the Company monitors for the occurrence of events
that have a detrimental impact on the recoverability of financial assets. Evidence of credit impairment includes, but
is not limited to, indications of significant financial difficulty of the counterparty, a breach of contract or failure to
adhere to payment terms, bankruptcy or financial reorganisation of a counterparty or the disappearance of an active
market for the financial asset.

A financial asset is only written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

The Company employs the simplified approach to make an estimate of ECL. There are no outstanding balances as
at 31 December 2022 resulting in an ECL of £nil in the current year.

Related party transactions
GROUP

The Company had the following amounts outstanding from its investee companies (Note 13) at 31 December:

2022 2021

£000 £000
Helium One opening balance - 73
Conversion to shares in Helium One - (73)

Balance at 31 December

Details of director’s remuneration, being key personnel, are given in Note 7.

The Company entered into transactions with the following related parties who have common directors during the
current year:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Gneiss Energy Limited - provision of corporate finance advisory -
common director Jonathan Fitzpatrick 489 606
Quixote Advisors Ltd - provision of management services -
common director Tom Reynolds - (19)

The primary contract with Gneiss Energy Limited has terminated. The only remaining contract with the related
party is in relation to the sale of the Ruvuma asset which will terminate automatically upon completion of the
sale.

In the prior year, the Group loaned £1,200,000 to Energy Acquisitions Group Limited, a 50% owned joint venture
of the Group and accrued interest of £134,000 (2021: £44,000). The loan is repayable on demand but is not
callable in the 12 months after the date of signing these financial statements. Interest is payable and accrued in
accordance with the loan agreement. Outstanding balance at 31 December 2022 is £1,448k (2021: £1,244k)
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23

Related party transactions

COMPANY

(Continued)

The Company had the following amounts outstanding from its investee companies (Note 13) at 31 December:

2022

£000
Helium One opening balance -
Conversion to shares in Helium One -
Balance at 31 December -
Details of director’s remuneration, being key personnel, are given in Note 7.
Amounts due from subsidiaries

2022

£000
Scirocco Energy (UK) Limited 1,451

2021
£000

73
(73)

2021
£000

1,244

Interest is payable and accrued in accordance with loan agreement. Intercompany balances are repayable on

demand.

The Company entered into transactions with the following related parties who have common directors during the

current year:

2022
£000
Gneiss Energy Limited - provision of corporate finance advisory -
common director Jonathan Fitzpatrick 489
Quixote Advisors Ltd - provision of management services -
common director Tom Reynolds -

2021
£000

606

(19)

The primary contract with Gneiss Energy Limited has terminated. The only remaining contract with the related
party is in relation to the sale of the Ruvuma asset which will terminate automatically upon completion of the

sale.

In the prior year, the Company loaned £1,200,000 to Scirocco Energy (UK) Limited, a 100% owned subsidiary
of the Company and accrued interest of £134,000 (2021: £44,000). The loan is repayable on demand but is not
callable in the twelve months from the date of signing these financial statements, interest is payable and accrued
in accordance with the loan agreement. Outstanding balance at 31 December 2022 is £1,448k (2021: £1,244k)

Ultimate controlling party

GROUP AND COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors there is no controlling party.
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

24 Commitments

GROUP AND COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had no material commitments (2021: £nil).
25 Retirement benefit scheme

GROUP AND COMPANY

The Company operates only the basic pension plan required under UK legislation, contributions thereto during

the year amounted to £nil (2021: £nil).

26 Cash generated from operations

2022
GROUP £000
(Loss)/profit for the year after tax for continuing operations (1,438)
Loss for the year after tax for discontinuing operations (3,377)
Adjustments for:
Unrealised gain on investments held 2
Impairment of investments 58
Loss on fair value revaluation of assets held for sale 3,377
Gain from sale of investment (57)
Interest accrued on loan to related party (134)
Equity settled share based payment expense 130
Share of profit in joint venture (40)
Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (82)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 46
Cash absorbed by operations (1,515)

2021
£000

362
(4,053)

3,846

(2,196)

(44)
471

268

—
~
—

=

(1,417)
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SCIROCCO ENERGY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

27 Post balance sheet event

At the date these financial statements were approved, being 30 June 2022, the Directors would like to call
attention to the below post balance sheet events.

Sale of Tanzanian Assets

The sale of the 25% non-operating interest in the Ruvuma asset, Tanzania, was originally announced in the prior
period. An agreement has been entered into for the sale of this asset with ARA Petroleum Tanzania ("APT"). As
communicated to the market in an RNS dated 25 May 2023, the long stop date on this agreement has been
extended to 31 August 2023 and both parties expect to complete the transaction within this timeframe although
completion cannot be guaranteed.

Part sale of Helium One shareholding
In June 2023 the Company sold 1,906,088 shares of Helium One for an average price of 7.5p per share.

Sale of Corallian shareholding

In March 2023, the Company sold it's 25% holding in the Corallian asset. Net proceeds for this sale amounted
to £67k. The asset has been reflected in the financial statements as at 31 December 2022 at this sales price
which is considered to be representative of fair market value.

Changes to Board of Directors

As announced in RNS dated 1st March, 16th March and 27th April, to reflect the change in strategic direction of
the Company, and to retain the appropriate level of skills, experience, and independence, there have been
changes to the Board of Directors in the period after the Balance Sheet date. Muir Miller has stepped down from
the Board effective 31 May 2023. In addition, Don Nicolson has notified of his intention to step down in due
course. The Company has appointed directors Niall Roberts and Matt Bower after consultation with significant
shareholders who joined the Board on 1st March 2023 and 27th April 2023, respectively. The Company expects
to identify and appoint a suitable independent non-executive director to replace Don Nicolson in due course.

-83-
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Tom Reynolds (CEO)
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